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TREMONTON

cITY COUNCIL

Tremonton City Corporation
City Council Meeting
January 16, 2024
Meeting to be held at
102 South Tremont Street
Tremonton, Utah

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP AGENDA

Review of the 7:00 p.m. City Council Meeting Agenda ltems

Discussion of the effectiveness of the Midland Square Project

CLOSED SESSIONS:

a. Strategy session to discuss the purchase of real property when public discussion of
the transaction would disclose the appraisal or estimated value of the property
under consideration or prevent the public body from completing the transaction on
the best possible terms; and/or

b. Strategy session to discuss the character, professional competence or physical or
mental health of an individual; and/or

C. Strategy sessions to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation; and/or

d. Discussions regarding security personnel, devices or systems

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
7:00 p.m.

Opening Ceremony

Introduction of guests

Declaration of Conflict of Interest
Approval of agenda

Approval of minutes — January 2, 2024



Presentation

a.

Audited 2023 Financial Statements- Curtis Roberts, Tremonton City Finance
Director & Andy Hernandez, Jones Simkins

Public comments: This is an opportunity to address the City Council regarding your concerns
or ideas. (Please keep your comments to under 3 minutes.)

New Council Business:

a.

Discussion and consideration of adopting Ordinance No. 24-01 approving
amendments to Tremonton City Land Use Code, including Title I Chapter 1.04 Land
Use and Appeal Authorities; Title 11 Chapters 2.02 Concept Plans; 2.03 Preliminary
Plats; 2.04 Final Plats; and Chapter 2.07 Lot Splits. (The purpose of these proposed
amendments is to comply with the requirements of SB 174 requirements (Utah
Code))

Discussion and consideration of adopting Ordinance No. 24-02 establishing a new
zoning district entitled the Aspen Ridges North Overlay Zone, and amending the
Tremonton City Zoning for Parcel 05-186-0058, totaling approximately 10.94 acres,
from the Bear River Meadows Overlay Zone District to an underlying zoning district
of Residential Multiple District, RM-16 and an Overlay Zoning District of the Aspen
Ridges North Overlay Zone and approving a zoning development agreement
Discussion and consideration of adopting Resolution No. 24-06 approving a template
escrow agreement as a financial guarantee for all required public infrastructure
improvements associated with subdivision and site plans

Discussion and consideration of adopting Resolution No. 24-10 approving
amendments to the moderate-income housing strategies contained in the Tremonton
City & Tremonton City RDA 2022 Moderate Income Housing Plan as an element of
the Tremonton City General Plan

Discussion and consideration of adopting Resolution No. 24-11 approving
Tremonton City’s project list for the calendar year 2024 for the Box Elder County
Local Transportation Corridor Preservation Fund

Discussion and consideration of adopting Resolution No. 24-12 appointing Marc
Christensen as City Manager and approving the terms and conditions of a City
Manager Agreement between Tremonton City and Marc Christensen

Discussion and consideration of approving Ordinance No. 24-03 adopting the
Autoliv Solar Community Reinvestment Project Area #1 Plan.

Discussion and consideration of adopting Resolution No. 24-13 approving an
interlocal cooperation agreement with the Tremonton City Redevelopment Agency
regarding tax increment funding in the Autoliv Solar Community Reinvestment
Project Area #1

Consent Agenda

a.
b.

Approval of the December Financial Statements

Approval of the December Warrant Register



10.  Calendar Items and Previous Assignment
a. Review of calendar
b. Unfinished Business/Action ltems

11. Reports & Comments:
a. City Administration Reports and Comments
b Development Review Committee Report and Comments
C. City Department Head Reports and Comments
d Council Reports and Comments

12. CLOSED SESSIONS:

a. Strategy session to discuss the purchase of real property when public discussion of
the transaction would disclose the appraisal or estimated value of the property
under consideration or prevent the public body from completing the transaction on
the best possible terms; and/or

b. Strategy session to discuss the character, professional competence or physical or
mental health of an individual; and/or

C. Strategy sessions to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation; and/or

d. Discussions regarding security personnel, devices or systems

13.  Adjournment

Anchor location for Electronic Meeting by Telephone Device. With the adoption of Ordinance No.
13-04, the Council may participate per Electronic Meeting Rules. Please make arrangements in
advance.

Persons with disabilities needing special assistance to participate in this meeting should contact
Linsey Nessen no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.

Notice was posted January 12, 2024 a date not less than 24 hours prior to the date and time
of the meeting and remained so posted until after said meeting. A copy of the agenda was
delivered to The Leader (Newspaper) on January 12, 2024.

Linsey Nessen, CITY RECORDER
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Draft Minutes

TREMONTON CITY CORPORATION
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
JANUARY 2, 2024
Members Present:
Wes Estep
Jeff Hoedt
Bret Rohde
Lyle Vance
Blair Westergard
Lyle Holmgren, Mayor
Shawn Warnke, City Manager
Marc Christensen, Assistant City Manager
Linsey Nessen, City Recorder

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

Mayor Holmgren called the January 2, 2024 City Council Workshop to order at 5:34 p.m. The
meeting was held in the City Council Meeting Room at 102 South Tremont Street, Tremonton,
Utah. Those in attendance were Mayor Holmgren, Councilmembers Estep, Hoedt, Rohde, Vance
and Westergard, City Manager Warnke, Assistant City Manager Christensen, and City Recorder
Nessen. The following Department Head was also present: Fire Chief Brady Hansen.

1. City Councilmember Pictures

Motion by Councilmember Vance to move into closed session. Motion seconded by
Councilmember Rohde. Vote: Councilmember Estep - aye, Councilmember Hoedt - aye,
Councilmember Rohde - aye, Councilmember Vance — aye, Councilmember Westergard - aye.
Motion approved.

The Council moved into a closed session at 5:34 p.m.

2. CLOSED SESSIONS:

a. Strategy session to discuss the purchase of real property when public discussion
of the transaction would disclose the appraisal or estimated value of the
property under consideration or prevent the public body from completing the
transaction on the best possible terms; and/or

b. Strategy session to discuss the character, professional competence or physical
or mental health of an individual; and/or

C. Strategy sessions to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation; and/or

d. Discussions regarding security personnel, devices or systems

Motion by Councilmember Estep to return to open session. Motion seconded by
Councilmember Vance. Vote: Councilmember Estep - aye, Councilmember Hoedt - aye,
Councilmember Rohde - aye, Councilmember Vance — aye, Councilmember Westergard - aye.
Motion approved.

The Council returned to open session at 6:47 p.m.

City Council 1 January 2, 2024
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3. Review of the agenda items identified on 7:00 p.m. City Council Agenda
The meeting adjourned at 6:47 p.m. by consensus of the Council.
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Mayor Holmgren called the January 2, 2024 City Council Meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. The
meeting was held in the Tremonton City Council Meeting Room at 102 South Tremont Street,
Tremonton, Utah. Those in attendance were Mayor Holmgren, Councilmembers Estep, Hoedt,
Rohde, Vance, and Westergard, City Manager Warnke, Assistant City Manager Christensen, and
City Recorder Nessen. The following Department Heads were also present: Fire Chief Brady
Hansen, Public Works Director Paul Fulgham (arrived at 7 p.m.), Police Chief Dustin Cordova
(arrived at 7:15 p.m.), Parks and Recreation Director Zach LeFevre and Downtown Manager
Sara Mohrman (arrived at 7 p.m.).

1. Opening Ceremony:

Mayor Holmgren informed the audience that he had received no written or oral request to
participate in the Opening Ceremony. He asked anyone who may be offended by
listening to a prayer to step out into the lobby for this portion of the meeting. The prayer
was offered by Mayor Holmgren and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by
Councilmember Vance.

2. Swearing in of Newly Elected City Councilmembers
a. Councilmember Jeffery Hoedt
b. Councilmember Lyle Vance
C. Councilmember Blair Westergard

Recorder Nessen swore in the newly elected officials.

3. Introduction of guests: Mayor Holmgren welcomed those in attendance, including a
group of students.

4, Declaration of Conflict of Interest: None.
5. Approval of Agenda:

Motion by Councilmember Vance to approve the agenda of January 2, 2024. Motion
seconded by Councilmember Hoedt. VVote: Councilmember Estep - aye, Councilmember
Hoedt - aye, Councilmember Rohde - aye, Councilmember Vance — aye, Councilmember
Westergard - aye. Motion approved.

6. Approval of minutes — December 5, 2023

Motion by Councilmember Rohde to approve the minutes of December 5, 2023.
Motion seconded by Councilmember Estep. Vote: Councilmember Estep - aye,
Councilmember Hoedt - aye, Councilmember Rohde - aye, Councilmember Vance — aye,
Councilmember Westergard - aye. Motion approved.

City Council 2 January 2, 2024
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7.

Citizenship Awards
a. Tremonton City Citizenship Award to Elementary and Intermediate Students

Mayor Holmgren said it is time for one of our favorite parts of our meeting—our
citizenship awards. The reason we recognize these young people is because of
their commitment to citizenship and being good neighbors in their school. Their
desire to be safe around the school and protect other kids. It is a great thing. We
appreciate these young people for their commitment to being good citizens. He
read through those students, they took a picture and provided them with a gift
certificate.

Public comments:

Resident Bill Roosma said | am here to talk about trailers parked on the street, again. It is
my understanding from law enforcement that all they do is give out courtesy notices,
courtesy tickets, courtesy warnings. If | park my trailer on the road and only get a
courtesy warning to move it every time law enforcement shows up, then why would |
move my trailer? Why would I comply? RVs and utility trailers that are fully enclosed,
that you cannot see through or around are a safety threat to children and drivers. If a
driver cannot see the kid and the kid runs out from back or in front of the trailer and gets
hit and killed, that is a problem. An unsuspecting driver who was in the wrong place at
the right time killed a kid. The law says they have 24 hours and then they have to move
it. I want to see that changed to 10 hours—that is sufficient. You can give first-time
offenders a courtesy warning. On the second offense, | want a $100 fine. Third offense, a
$300 fine and for every offense after that, on a repeat offender, | believe it should be
$500. When you start taking money out of people’s pockets, they will comply. An
individual on my street parks their RV and utility trailer on the street. | have talked to him
about this and explained the problems. Friday, he showed up with a flatbed trailer that is
still there. | talked to an officer today about it and they went out and again he got another
courtesy warning. This is urgent. | have been talking about this for the last couple years.
Not only is it an eyesore, it is a major safety concern. A flatbed trailer does not obstruct
your view, but if you let that go then somebody else in the neighborhood will think they
can park a trailer on the road. It snowballs from there and your streets turn into a cluster.
It is a bunch of crap. Also, I am not happy with the chip seal. There is a lot of loose
gravel on the road. My neighbors do not like it either. | have seen street cleaners come
down the road to clean up, but unfortunately, | see them just randomly leave the
neighborhood. | would really appreciate it, as well as all my neighbors, if we could clean
up that loose gravel. It sticks in our tires and ends up in our driveways. The last couple
times | have used my snowblower, rocks got caught in the blades and broke something.

Mayor Holmgren said on the street sweeper, we have not had one for a while. As long as
we have good weather, we can get out there and do some sweeping, but realistically, we
may be looking at spring. Not to make an excuse, but that was an issue we had. We will
address this other issue, too. Councilmember Estep said also when they leave, you never
know when that bed is full. Sometimes the boss says, you have to go over here. We try to
hit them all, but we have not had a sweeper for over a year. We will work on that.
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Resident Kristie Bowcutt said | just want to welcome the new councilmembers. I am
excited for change. | am excited to see what you do, and | support you. | think it is
wonderful and it is going to be fun to see where the City moves on from there and
positivity that can come through that. So good luck, guys.

Downtown Manager and resident Sara Mohrman said on our agenda tonight is Midland
Square, and | am very excited about it. There is going to be a big presentation, but just
know that the team who worked on that put in a lot of work. We looked at every little
thing in that square to make sure it is the best option for our community. As someone
who has been working very closely with our downtown and businesses, we need this—
yesterday. In this last month and a half, we have had two businesses downtown close that
have been here for a while. They are small local businesses. | would not be surprised if
we had more close this year. This square is necessary to bring people into our community
downtown and to get people aware of our businesses and to get them supported. | want
you to take that into consideration and know a lot of work, debate, discussion and critical
thinking went into the design and what is best. Thank you.

9. New Council Business:
a. Discussion and consideration of adopting Resolution No. 24-01 approving the
Final Concept Plan for Midland Square Improvements associated with the Rural
Communities Opportunity Grant

Manager Warnke said we engaged a consultant to help us do the design. Mayor
Holmgren helped secure a grant for $405,000 through the Governor’s Office of
Economic Opportunity to undertake this effort. They saw value and are willing to
invest money in this project. We hired an urban designer and have a tight
timeline. Tonight, we hope the Council will adopt this resolution, approving the
final concept plan. From there, we will do the final renderings and design work.
An engineer would then prep construction and bid documents for bids in April.
The project needs to be completed by December 31, 2024. Construction would
start this summer. The Planning Commission has reviewed this and it will likely
circle back to them. Part of the grant requirement is having them involved in this
process. Their comments have been reflected in this design.

Ben Levenger said this is an opportunity to explain to the Council the process and
what has happened so far. We want this to be a destination downtown. No longer
a random park—it has to have a purpose with style and design. A steering
committee helped us with ideas. The next step will be to do the layout plans. We
would then hand that off to an engineering firm to do the construction documents.
It would then be sent to bid in April. It has to be done this year because there is
not an extension opportunity. The grant requires restrooms and a stage or
amphitheater area. The space needs as many booths as possible for your Farmer’s
Market. We will preserve the war memorial and personify local architectural
character and buildings and promote multipurpose. This space is used for
anything and everything so it is important that it has as many potentials uses as
possible. These are our design parameters. He then explained the flow and where
things would be located. He explained where parking, utilities and booths would
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go. After much analysis we came up with a final concept, which is what you see.
There will be a covered swing area and canopy. The stage is flat with the
restrooms tucked in behind. It is currently designed to have a tall enough area
where if you want to have a bandstand or stage, you can bring a temporary stage
in and elevate that. A linear pathway goes right down the middle. The goal is to
go through the arch and pass a water fountain area into the pavilion. The restroom
and maintenance storage room will be in the back. The alleyway is being
repurposed with tables and chairs. The war memorial is intact. The swings are for
the purpose of having permanent seats in the area since they are more like a porch
swing. There will be lots of landscapes and more trees. We also want to maximize
the space for booths and festivals. That will be a balancing act. The more trees we
add the less space we have for tables and booths until the trees are mature enough.
North looking south through the archway you can see the City logo emblem. That
circle is flush in the ground. Currently that is a 12-foot diameter circle. The goal
is to have that be a programmed fountain where water spurts out of the City seal.
This will be a space where kids can play and is also decorative. There is a smaller
arch in the southeast corner as well to welcome and usher people into the site
from all sides. For the festival layout we programmed space to see where we
could put 10 by 10 booths. With this design we can get 64 booths total. There is a
12-foot aisle in between. The power boxes will be flush through the entire site in
the turf or concrete. This will be fully ADA accessible.

Mayor Holmgren said we appreciate the time and effort you put into this. I
understand there is a trade-off between shade and usefulness of the area. Have
you given that any thought? Ben Levenger said you could load the area up and
wait eight to 10 years for the trees to mature. The booths would skirt around the
outside. The more we add the less space you will have available. Currently you
have 45 booths you can fit in this space so you can lose about 20 before you start
hindering the space you currently have. It will be very hot. The only other option
is to put more shade-type structures (poles with canvas tarps). The downside is the
wind. Councilmember Hoedt said you show trees behind the swings. If there is a
presentation going on under the covered shelter will people who bring seats be
able to see through there? Ben Levenger said yes, they should. This is going to be
tough for the first three to five years because it will take time for those trees to
grow. After about five years everybody will be able to see through the green
areas. Councilmember Hoedt said | wonder if we move the clock to the northwest
corner of the property and add an electronic sign to announce Council meetings
and other events. Ben Levenger said we may need to find a different location for
that. I like the idea, though. Councilmember Hoedt said | am not sold necessarily
on that clock tower. | want a sign to convey information. Ben Levenger said we
would want to keep that out of any UDOT right-of-way, otherwise there is
additional permitting, but we can look at it. Councilmember Vance said it looks
like a lot of time and effort has been put into the concept, but | have not seen any
numbers. We have the $405,000 grant, but what is the total? Ben Levenger said
$650,000 to $675,000 is our estimation. No prices are set, however. Mayor
Holmgren said we have also looked at RDA funding, which has been saved up for
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several years to enhance Main Street. We are working with a company that could
help us partner in this effort. Councilmember Rohde said | personally do not think
we need a water fountain. | like the idea of the logo. Councilmember Vance
agreed. Manager Warnke said one of the things we are trying to do is activate the
site. This is a great venue for intentional programming and events, but we also
want passive recreation to occur. We want people going to the square when there
is not an event going on and water attracts people. | believe it will draw people in.
If we only draw people in for events then we miss the mark. Currently people do
not go into the square and beyond the memorial, there is no reason to. There is no
attraction. Councilmember Hoedt said | am a proponent to the water item for the
reasons Manager Warnke explained. Water definitely draws people.
Councilmember Estep said we live in a desert and are conserving water. | am for
everything except that fountain.

Assistant City Manager Christensen reviewed the cost. We received the $405,000
grant. We estimated the total project to be $580,000 as we prepared the grant, but
prices have increased. We did not know exactly what we wanted to put in here
and that is why we hired the designer. | put $700,000 as the current proposal. Ben
Levenger is estimating between $650,000 and $675,000. We have $810,000 in
our RDA fund to help with Main Street improvements. We are also almost caught
up on tax increment reimbursement from the Main Street RDA. If there are no
more eligible expenses submitted by the Tremont Center developer, who has first
rights to those increments, then we can reimburse ourselves as we receive that tax
increment until 2032. Manager Warnke said on the long-term outlook we
anticipate the City is going to receive increment. The concept of creating a public
plaza is included in the project area budget for the RDA. Councilmember Vance
clarified that this development was set up with the developer taking on the risk.
The City did not put a dime on this. We are simply reimbursing the developer as
time goes on as we receive the money. Manager Warnke said this is a post-
performance scenario—they get money if they perform. All the taxing entities
agreed to this and thought it would be helpful for the community and eventually
would improve their situation with property tax. Councilmember Vance said it is
important the public understands the City has not put out money on the
development. The developer has done that with the hope he will improve the
property and increase the tax value so he can be reimbursed.

Manager Warnke said you might see some change, but fundamentally, what you
see is what you are approving. Mayor Holmgren said we are adopting the
resolution based on what we have seen with the understanding there could be
minor changes. Manager Warnke said if approved you are saying you support the
project as generally proposed. That will give City staff the confidence to get the
construction drawings and everything put together and moving. You have already
approved a portion of the budget. We would do a budget amendment for the
remaining funds. That would be forthcoming. You will award a bid to a
contractor, so there will be some additional steps in the process. Councilmember
Rohde said | am not comfortable going forward if 1 do not know how much we
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are going to spend. We need to get bids and find out what that total is. Manager
Warnke said we have given you the best information we have to date, which is
roughly $700,000. We put a margin for contingency in there. The restroom,
underground electrical vaults and stage are the three elements of the grant. Other
things can become bid alternates. We will bid it then come to the Council with the
highs and lows for approval of the actual bid for construction. Tonight, you are
just saying if we are moving forward with the design as it is proposed.

Councilmember Vance said | am voting nay because | need to see some type of
final determination. I know there may be additions down the road, but we do not
know what we are voting on.

Motion by Councilmember Hoedt to adopt the resolution. Motion seconded by
Councilmember Westergard. Roll Call Vote: Councilmember Estep - aye,
Councilmember Hoedt - aye, Councilmember Rohde - aye, Councilmember
Vance — nay, Councilmember Westergard - aye. Motion approved by a 4-1 vote.

Discussion and consideration of adopting Resolution No. 24-02 approving a
professional services agreement with Les Olson for Information Technology
services

Assistant City Manager Christensen said for the past 15 years we have been with
our current IT provider. They have had a lot of internal changes. City staff has
lost a lot of trust in this current provider. We received a bid from Les Olson IT.
We have done a couple revisions. This Les Olson rep is based out of Perry and
has four guys working from Ogden to Malad. They are all engineers who work on
a rotating basis. We have used Les Olson for other things like our copy machines
and their service is always fantastic. For cost I do not think we will have to do a
budget amendment. The cost just kind of transfers from one to the other. | have
full confidence this will be a much better situation. Cost is $3,190 per month.
They have additional options like bolstering security or emails. The State reached
out and will pay for Sentinel-1 protection for all municipalities and counties. We
will be granted $617 a month from the State.

Motion by Councilmember Estep to adopt the resolution. Motion seconded by
Councilmember Vance. Roll Call Vote: Councilmember Estep - aye,
Councilmember Hoedt - aye, Councilmember Rohde - aye, Councilmember
Vance — aye, Councilmember Westergard - aye. Motion approved.

Discussion and consideration of ratifying Resolution No. 24-03 ratifying the
Rivers Edge Phase 1A Subdivision Development Agreement

Mayor Holmgren said Rivers Edge Phase 1 is constructed—we are just ratifying
the development agreement. Manager Warnke said this is a pretty straightforward
agreement. They are eligible for impact fee reimbursement in this phase of their
development of secondary water system improvements. The pump station would
serve Area 9. This is a post-performance reimbursement. Once they install that we
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would reimburse them the impact fees, which is stated in the contract. This
essentially closed the gap from 775 East to the trailhead. There will be 14 lots.

Manager Warnke said on the agenda is a new section called Consent Agenda,
which are items you approve with one motion. You are essentially consenting to
what has already been done. Same concept as a warrant register. The Council
agreed the item needs to say ratify not adopt in the motion for clarity.
Councilmember Rohde said we are ratifying something, but to me, you are asking
us to support a decision City staff has made in the past. What if that decision is
not in line with what we want? If it is an administrative decision, | do not think
we ought to be ratifying that. If it is legislative, then we ought to be having the
discussion and approving the ordinance. Manager Warnke said | understand
where you are coming from. One of the reasons we like resolutions is they are
easy to find and become a part of the record. One of our services as local
government is creating records, being transparent and providing records upon
request. That is done through a resolution format. It makes it really easy to
formalize, create and retrieve the record. You are adopting a resolution that is
ratifying what has already been agreed to and has already been signed and
recorded. The only other option is not to put it on as a resolution, but then we lose
that administrative advantage of having a good record. Councilmember Vance
said however, it becomes a record that we approved it and we never had any
knowledge of it. Manager Warnke said it also helps us streamline the process.
Developers could wait weeks potentially if we wait for this approval. There have
been changes in State law for the subdivision process to streamline it due to the
housing crisis. The State has a real interest for affordable housing and is trying to
see those units come to market. They are tightening up subdivision processes to
make them quicker and more efficient. Councilmember Vance said it is just a
technicality. | feel a lot better with the Consent Agenda. That is easy for
everybody to understand and that these resolutions are being ratified within City
policies. Manager Warnke said maybe we could be more transparent in the
language and say, agreements that have been previously recorded that staff was
authorized. | understand you are being asked to vote on something that has
already been approved and done. We will make those updates moving forward.

Motion by Councilmember Vance to ratify this resolution. Motion seconded
by Councilmember Estep. Roll Call Vote: Councilmember Estep - aye,
Councilmember Hoedt - aye, Councilmember Rohde - nay, Councilmember
Vance — aye, Councilmember Westergard - aye. Motion approved by a 4-1 vote.

Discussion and consideration of ratifying Resolution No. 24-04 ratifying the
Mountain View P.U.D. Phase 3 Subdivision Development Agreement

Manager Warnke said this is located in proximity to the Crossroads. It is Main
Street going east of that intersection. There are townhomes there and this is the
next parcel that would complete that complex. Originally, it had shown an access
on Main Street, but UDOT is only going to permit one, which is the existing
access. This one will not be constructed. The developer has frontage
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improvements on Main Street so we took a fee-in-lieu. They also dedicated
additional right-of-way.

Motion by Councilmember Vance to ratify this resolution. Motion seconded
by Councilmember Westergard. Roll Call Vote: Councilmember Estep - aye,
Councilmember Hoedt - aye, Councilmember Rohde - nay, Councilmember
Vance — aye, Councilmember Westergard - aye. Motion approved by a 4-1 vote.

Discussion and consideration of adopting Resolution No. 24-05, repealing
Resolution No. 20-42, and approving an amended template Subdivision
Development Agreement

Manager Warnke said when someone records a development, our code says they
have a year to install public improvements, but | came across a version that said
two years. | wanted to clarify and make sure it reflected our current code. I also
added common language within development agreements in the special condition
section. This is a template development agreement that we use for the things you
ratified previously. The only thing that changes are those special conditions
because they are things that are not known. As a whole, you have already
approved the language accepting these specific conditions that are specific to
approvals. Councilmember Vance said | think this is a great idea. It speeds things
up and makes sure everybody is getting treated the same.

Motion by Councilmember Vance to adopt the resolution. Motion seconded
by Councilmember Rohde. Roll Call Vote: Councilmember Estep - aye,
Councilmember Hoedt - aye, Councilmember Rohde - aye, Councilmember
Vance — aye, Councilmember Westergard - aye. Motion approved.

Discussion and consideration of adopting Resolution No. 24-06 approving a
template Escrow Agreement as a financial guarantee for all required public
infrastructure improvements associated to City ordinance for subdivisions and site
plans

Manager Warnke said the Consent Agenda item is a new process. When we
approve a subdivision, we exact public improvements that are proportionate to a
development’s impact on the City’s services. When developers record a
subdivision, they can construct all those improvements or do them in sections, but
have to provide a financial guarantee. There are two methods in our code that
allows for this financial guarantee, which he discussed. If for some reason they do
not install those improvements within a year, then the City technically could go in
and pull that financial guarantee and make the improvements. We typically only
do that as a worst-case scenario. We have the ability to access money if it needs
be. We do try to work with developers in the escrow. This just provides the
financial guarantee. The Council agreed they would like to have more
information.

Motion by Councilmember Estep to table the item. Motion seconded by
Councilmember Rohde. Vote: Councilmember Estep - aye, Councilmember
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Hoedt - aye, Councilmember Rohde - aye, Councilmember Vance — aye,
Councilmember Westergard - aye. Motion approved.

10.  Consent Agenda:

a.

b.

Discussion and consideration of adopting Resolution No. 24-07 ratifying the final
acceptance of Spring Acres Phase 7

Discussion and consideration of adopting Resolution No. 24-08 ratifying the final
acceptance of Tremont Place Phase 2

Discussion and consideration of adopting Resolution No. 24-09 ratifying the final
acceptance of Tremont Place Phase 3

Discussion and consideration of approving the November Financial Statements
Discussion and consideration of approving the November Warrant Register

Manager Warnke said there are three on here that we are doing differently, which
is more in line with City ordinances. One of the powers and duties of the City
Manager is that they are authorized to release financial guarantees and to accept a
subdivision, but it requires it to be on the Council’s agenda. The best mechanism,
from an administrative perspective, is to have these resolutions. They are easy to
retrieve. At the end of each fiscal year our finance director finds what subdivision
improvements we have accepted so that he can list those as assets for the City and
accurately have that reflected in the financial statements. We use those assets to
determine the amount of revenue we need to replace in the future. This provides
an easy way to formalize that process and is consistent with the code. We should
have been doing this years ago, but it came to my attention now that former
Building and Zoning Administrator Steve Bench has retired. We can look at those
special conditions and make sure they are fulfilled in the development agreement.
There is a letter from the engineer accepting the improvements and authorizing
the release, and the other shows the special conditions that have been reviewed
and found in compliance.

Motion by Councilmember Estep to adopt the resolutions listed above and
approve the November Financial Statement and November Warrant
Register. Motion seconded by Councilmember Vance. Roll Call Vote:
Councilmember Estep - aye, Councilmember Hoedt - aye, Councilmember Rohde
- aye, Councilmember Vance — aye, Councilmember Westergard - aye. Motion
approved.

11.  Calendar Items and Previous Assignment

a.

b.

Review of calendar

Mayor Holmgren invited the Council to attend a meeting on January 9 in Salt
Lake City and mentioned the next Council meeting would be held on January 16.

Unfinished Business/Action ltems: None.

12. Reports & Comments:

a.
b.

City Council

City Administration Reports and Comments: None.
Development Review Committee Report and Comments
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City Council

Manager Warnke said we have DRC tomorrow. We will revisit a subdivision that
has previously been on hold until the developer required radiuses that were
needed in the area of 2300 West 810 North. We have quite a few construction
projects that are in process and are working with our engineer. One of the projects
| wanted to bring to your attention is 1000 North. We hope to have that going next
construction season. It requires us to acquire right-of-way. We have been
hindered by several issues, but we are to a point where Assistant City Manager
Christensen has signed over offers of just compensation. Our acquisition agent
will reach out to the property owners and acquire those properties. Hopefully
residents can get on board and accept those offers. They are getting compensation
and a road because of it.

City Department Head Reports and Comments

Fire Chief Hansen said we had a busy holiday season so when you see our
firefighters and EMS give them a pat on the back. We have been steady. The team
stepped up and met needs. While we were enjoying our holidays there were
people in the community having crisis and our team really helped carry that load.
Both the on-duty crews and off-duty people did a fantastic job to cover us through
a busy holiday season.

Director LeFevre said this year one of our goals is to promote health and
wellness. That is what Parks and Recreation is all about. We want to help with
health and wellness to the community and to individuals, both physically and
mentally. This is something we are going to make more of an effort on this year
and it is something the State is working toward as well.

Council Reports and Comments

Councilmember Rohde said after some discussion | liked the responses to my
garbage can idea. | would like to see us move forward with that. We could use
this to benefit something within the City, like the food pantry. It is a win-win for
everyone. The garbage can could be orange or something like that. Once we had
cans out and people started seeing those they could jump on board and we might
be able to help the pantry a lot. People would get one for an extended period of
time, maybe three or five years and their bill will be an extra $10 or $20 a month.
This is kind of like specialized license plates.

Mayor Holmgren handed out books to the new Councilmembers with some
history on Tremonton. He said it just a great reference to go back and look at. We
have discussed the possibility of doing a retreat as a Council and discussing what
is important to us. This book is called 13 Ways to Kill Your Community, which is
a satire. It walks through things and has a lot of great ideas we can be thinking
about. It is a fun read. | also want to welcome Councilmembers Hoedt and
Westergard. Thank you. We are excited to work with you. I think it is going to be
a great Council. We each have strengths that can lend themselves to the success of
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our community and | am excited to work with all of you, and of course, with our
City staff. Thank you everybody.

13. CLOSED SESSIONS: No closed session held at this time.

a. Strategy session to discuss the purchase of real property when public discussion
of the transaction would disclose the appraisal or estimated value of the
property under consideration or prevent the public body from completing the
transaction on the best possible terms; and/or

b. Strategy session to discuss the character, professional competence or physical
or mental health of an individual; and/or

C. Strategy sessions to discuss pending or reasonably imminent litigation; and/or

d. Discussions regarding security personnel, devices or systems

14.  Adjournment.

Motion by Councilmember Estep to adjourn the meeting. Motion seconded by
Councilmember Rohde. Vote: Councilmember Estep - aye, Councilmember Hoedt - aye,
Councilmember Rohde - aye, Councilmember Vance — aye, Councilmember Westergard
- aye. Motion approved.

The meeting adjourned at 9:05 p.m.
The undersigned duly acting and appointed Recorder for Tremonton City Corporation hereby
certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the minutes for the City Council Meeting
held on the above referenced date. Minutes were prepared by Jessica Tanner.

Dated this day of , 2024.

Linsey Nessen, City Recorder

City Council 12 January 2, 2024
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1011 West 400 North, Suite 100
Logan, UT 84323-0747

JONES SIMKINS /fing Salt Lake City Office:

75 Certified Public Accountants 41 North Rio Grande; Suite 101
Providine Guidance with Insioht € Inteority Salt Lake City, UT 84101

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Tremonton, Utah

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Tremonton, Utah (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City, as of June 30, 2023, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of
the City and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The City’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

e [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the

management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, the schedules of the
proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the schedules of contributions, as listed in the
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table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The supplementary information listed
in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements.

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 10, 2024, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

QM Peindino LLC
JONES SIMKINS LLC

Logan, Utah
January 10, 2024
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CITY OF TREMONTON
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2023

This document is a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Tremonton City
for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. Tremonton City’s management suggests that all readers
consider the information presented here in conjunction with the financial statements which
follow this section. In this report the City’s activities are classified in the following manner:
governmental activities which refers to general administration, public safety, streets and public
improvements, parks, recreation, public property, library, and separate budgets for its
Redevelopment Agencies, etc., while business-type activities refer to operations of the water,
sewer, wastewater, and storm drainage utilities.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Tremonton City’s basic
financial statements. Tremonton City’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report also includes other supplementary information in addition to the basic
financial statements.

o The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of Tremonton City’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

o The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of Tremonton City’s assets and
deferred outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference between them
reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of Tremonton City is improving or
deteriorating. However, you will also need to consider other non-financial factors.

o The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the city’s net position
changed during the fiscal year reported. All changes in net position are reported as soon as
the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus, all of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account
regardless of when cash is received or paid.

o The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, which together comprise the
government-wide financial statements, distinguish between activities that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user
fees and charges (business-type activities). The government-wide financial statements can
be found in this report.
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Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Tremonton City also uses fund accounting
to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds
of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and
fiduciary funds. The City currently has no fiduciary funds.

. Governmental funds - These funds are used to account for the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. These fund
statements focus on how money flows into and out of these funds and the balances left at
year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting
method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and other financial assets
that can be readily converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the city’s general government operations and basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps users determine whether there are more or fewer
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the city’s programs. We
describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in a
reconciliation included with the fund financial statements.

The major governmental funds (as defined by generally accepted accounting principles) are
the General Fund, Fire/EMS Fund the Capital Projects Fund and the Transportation
Capacity Capital Projects Fund. The City also maintains the Parks Fund, Recreation Fund,
the Food Pantry Fund, Redevelopment Agency #2, Redevelopment Agency #3 and another
Capital Projects Fund. Tremonton City adopts an annual budget for each of these funds.

o Proprietary funds - Tremonton City maintains one type of proprietary fund, enterprise
funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type
activities in the government-wide financial statements. Tremonton City uses enterprise
funds to account for its culinary water, sewer collection, storm drain and wastewater
treatment utilities. As determined by generally accepted accounting principles, the Water
Fund, the Treatment Plant Fund and the Storm Drain Fund meet the criteria for major fund
classification.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s

financial position. In the case of Tremonton City, assets and deferred outflows exceed liabilities
and deferred inflows by $62,257,412.
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By far the largest portion of Tremonton City’s net position reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure assets, machinery and equipment, net of depreciation).
The city uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the city’s investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
2022 2023 2022 2023

Current and other assets $ 18,619,788 21,516,197 15,301,733 13,994,843

Capital assets, net 14,629,793 14,686,824 21,889,023 23,892,325

Total assets 33,249,581 36,203,021 37,190,756 37,887,168

Deferred outflows 335.279 506,644 171,904 223,091

Current liabilities 1,104,641 1,113,315 1,259,881 701,438

Noncurrent liabilities 208,000 717,323 6,747,502 6,386,846

Total liabilities 1,312,641 1,830,638 8,007,383 7,088,284

Deferred inflows 3,473,173 3,626,825 408,137 16,765
Net investment in capital

assets 14,509,052 14,686,824 16,346,765 17,219,325

Restricted 2,610,364 2,340,201 508,474 291,191

Unrestricted 11,679,630 14,225,177 12,091,901 13.494.694

Total net position $ 28,799,046 31,252,202 28,947,140 31,005,210

An additional part of net position is assets that are subject to external restrictions on how they

may be expended (debt reserve, capital projects, redevelopment or other purposes). The

remaining portion can be used to meet the city’s ongoing obligations to its creditors and citizens.
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Revenues:

Program revenues:
Charges for services
Operating grants and

contributions
Capital grants and
contributions

General revenues:

Taxes
Other

Total revenues

Expenses:
General government
Public safety
Streets and
highways
Sanitation
Parks and recreation
Health and
human services
Interest
Water utility
Sewer treatment
Storm drain
Nonmajor

Total expenses
Transfers

Change in net position

Net position — beginning

Net position — ending

June 30, 2023
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CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities
2022 2023 2022 2023
$ 3,001,213 2,557,450 5,818,639 5,362,631
2,370,755 1,408,558 - -
- 106,769 - -
5,970,571 6,458,809 - -
65,568 565,023 73,148 520,408
11,408,107 11,096,609 5,891,787 5,883,039
1,384,092 1,525,935 - -
3,167,817 3,653,743 - -
896,744 1,141,439 - -
401,523 478,845 - -
1,194,961 1,186,436 - -
569,282 655,800 - -
5,047 1,255 - -
- - 1,601,556 1,933,810
- - 1,370,345 1,596,641
- - 119,116 130,718
- - 128,084 163.800
7,619,466 8,643.453 3,219,101 3.824.969
(1.089.536) - 1,089,536 -
2,699,105 2,453,156 3,762,222 2,058,070
26,099.941 28.799.046 25,184,918  28.947.140
$ 28,799,046 31,252,202 28,947,140 31,005,210
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Governmental Activities

As noted in the table above, Governmental Activities net position increased by $2,453,156 this
current fiscal year. Key elements of this increase were as follows:

1) The City’s property tax and sales tax increased based on the economic conditions.
Development fees were lower as development slowed with higher interest rates. The City
benefitted from higher interest rates on investment balances. Expenses were higher by
approximately $1,024,000 mostly due to more expenditures for public safety, additional
administrative and professional costs and depreciation.

2) The City’s growth in prior years is resulting in higher costs of services but also higher
revenues related to sales tax and fees for services.

Sales, property and franchise taxes account for 58% of all revenue in the governmental activities.

Business-type activities

Business-type activities net position increased by $2,058,070. Charges for services decreased
mostly due to a wetter year resulting in lower water usage. Treatment plant revenues were also
lower. Expenses were also higher mostly due to higher operational costs and some maintenance.
The business-type activities continue to be asset intensive and require continual improvements to
ensure that the citizens are properly served.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF FUNDS

The focus of the city’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spend-able resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
city’s financing requirements. All activities which are not required to be accounted for in
separate funds, either by state or local ordinance or by a desire to maintain a matching of
revenues and expenses, are accounted for in this fund.

Taxes continue to be the largest source of revenue in the General Fund and represented 74% of
the total general fund revenues. The two largest elements of taxes are sales and use taxes and
property taxes. Sales and use tax growth continues to be an important issue for the city as it
accounts for job growth and inflation, unlike its companion property tax, which cannot increase
by inflationary impacts.

The City's property tax was higher based on collections reported to the City and was mostly due
to the increase in housing starts. Sales tax continued to increase due to the economy. Ambulance
fees decreased during the year based on collections which were impacted by turnover in key
personnel. The City spent more on public safety due to adding full-time staff. The City also
incurred higher personnel costs due to the labor shortage.

9.
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The City was required to contribute to UTOPIA (see notes for more information) to satisfy bond
commitments. The City also set aside almost $2,000,000 dollars for future capital projects,
including transportation capacity.

The Water Fund revenue increased as the City had more water connections and the secondary
system was available in more areas of the City. Expense increased overall due to higher
personnel costs due to the labor shortage and increased cost based on high inflation.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The budget is constantly under review by the office staff, mayor, and city council. Typically,
adjustments to the budget are considered midway through the fiscal year and considered again as
the year comes to a close. Many adjustments are minor while some are of greater significance.
The most significant adjustments were to increase the transfers to other funds. The City adjusted
the amount expected to be received from intergovernmental revenues and miscellaneous
revenues. The City increased the appropriations for public safety and streets/highway
expenditures, mostly due to higher costs. Other smaller adjustments were also made to expense
appropriations.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The City invested approximately $919,000 in governmental fixed assets and approximately
$3,610,000 in business-type fixed assets. The City’s governmental fixed assets additions
consisted mostly of a land acquisition, improvements to buildings, road projects and equipment
replacements.

The City's business-type fixed asset additions related to the purchase of land, water rights,
construction of a secondary water system, and treatment plant improvements.

The City’s governmental long-term debt decreased by approximately $121,000 as the City paid
off a lease. The City made required debt payments as scheduled for Water Fund bonds payable.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets and long-term debt can be found in the notes
to these financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

The City continues to have bond commitments to UTOPIA. During the year, the City was
required to pay approximately $396,000 for the commitment. The maximum commitment for the
next fiscal year is approximately $403,000. Further information is provided in the notes under
Joint Venture in UTOPIA.

-10-
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The City has contracted for a replacement and upsizing of sewer main and for ultra violet
equipment for the treatment plant. These projects will be completed in the next year. The City
was also awarded a grant for approximately $405,000 for improvements to the downtown area.
Subsequent to year-end, the City received a grant for $2,000,000 from the State of Utah to
construct a secondary water system in a portion of the City. The City also awarded a contract for
approximately $1,350,000 for construction on the secondary water system.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Tremonton City’s finances for
all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Tremonton City Finance Director, 102 South Tremont Street, Tremonton Utah,
84337.
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Assets
Pooled cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Due from other governments
Land
Infrastructure
Construction in process
Buildings
Improvements
Water and sewer lines
Equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total assets

Deferred Outflow of Resources
Pension related

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits due customers
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year
Net pension liability

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Pension related
Revenues for future periods

Total deferred inflow of resources

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total net position

CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2023

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
$ 16,716,361 13,044,927 29,761,288
- 533,377 533,377
818,719 416,539 1,235,258
3,981,117 - 3,981,117
2,489,727 1,193,020 3,682,747
15,044,034 - 15,044,034
155,319 5,261,674 5,416,993
2,198,618 7,876,114 10,074,732
3,622,609 5,200,786 8,823,395
- 8,444,203 8,444,203
5,631,467 7,469,650 13,101,117
(14,454,950) (11,553,122) (26,008,072)
36,203,021 37,887,168 74,090,189
506,644 223,091 729,735
203,457 105,988 309,445
909,858 87,000 996,858
- 25,450 25,450
- 483,000 483,000
231,000 6,241,580 6,472,580
486,323 145,266 631,589
1,830,638 7,088,284 8,918,922
16,437 16,765 33,202
3,610,388 - 3,610,388
3,626,825 16,765 3,643,590
14,686,824 17,219,325 31,906,149
2,340,201 291,191 2,631,392
14,225,177 13,494,694 27,719,871
$ 31,252,202 31,005,210 62,257,412

The accompanying notes are an integral

part of these financial statements
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CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Position
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary government:
Governmental:
General government $ 1,525,935 295,855 154,805 - (1,075,275) - (1,075,275)
Public safety 3,653,743 1,238,113 230,248 - (2,185,382) - (2,185,382)
Streets/highways 1,141,439 72,433 525,017 106,769 (437,220) - (437,220)
Sanitation 478,845 548,454 - - 69,609 - 69,609
Cultural, parks and recreation 1,186,436 402,595 19,809 - (764,032) - (764,032)
Health and human services 655,800 - 478,679 - (177,121) - (177,121)
Interest 1,255 - - - (1,255) - (1,255)
Total governmental activities 8,643,453 2,557,450 1,408,558 106,769 (4,570,676) - (4,570,676)
Business-type activities:
Water 1,933,810 2,633,674 - - - 699,864 699,864
Treatment plant 1,596,641 2,084,027 - - - 487,386 487,386
Storm drain 130,718 284,888 - - - 154,170 154,170
Nonmajor 163,800 360,042 - - - 196,242 196,242
Total business-type activities 3,824,969 5,362,631 - - - 1,537,662 1,537,662
Total primary government $ 12,468,422 7,920,081 1,408,558 106,769 (4,570,676) 1,537,662 (3,033,014)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property tax $ 2,304,197 - 2,304,197
Sales and use tax 2,952,116 - 2,952,116
Franchise tax 1,202,496 - 1,202,496
Total taxes 6,458,809 - 6,458,809
Interest 565,023 520,408 1,085,431
Total general revenues 7,023,832 520,408 7,544,240
Transfers in (out) - - -
Change in net position 2,453,156 2,058,070 4,511,226
Net position — beginning 28,799,046 28,947,140 57,746,186
Net position — ending $ 31,252,202 31,005,210 62,257,412

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TREMONTON
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2023

Special Transportation
Revenue Capacity Total
Capital Capital Nonmajor Governmental
General Fire/EMS Projects Projects Funds Funds
Assets
Pooled cash and cash equivalents $ 2,229,171 1,510,504 3,051,810 3,196,393 6,728,483 16,716,361
Accounts receivable, net 182,307 636,412 - - 818,719
Due from other governments 3,791,117 - - 190,000 3,981,117
Prepaid expenses - - - - - -
Total assets $§ 6,202,595 2,146,916 3,051,810 3,196,393 6,918,483 21,516,197
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 144,707 18,195 - - 40,555 203,457
Accrued expenses 909,858 - - - - 909,858
Total liabilities 1,054,565 18,195 - - 40,555 1,113,315
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Revenues for future periods 3,055,240 - - - 555,148 3,610,388
Fund balances
Restricted - - - - 2,340,201 2,340,201
Assigned - 2,128,721 3,051,810 3,196,393 3,982,579 12,359,503
Unassigned 2,092,790 - - - - 2,092,790
Total fund balance 2,092,790 2,128,721 3,051,810 3,196,393 6,322,780 16,792,494
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
of resources and fund balances $ 6,202,595 2,146,916 3,051,810 3,196,393 6,918,483 21,516,197

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements
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CITY OF TREMONTON
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Total fund balances for governmental funds $ 16,792,494

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net
Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Land $ 2,489,727
Construction in progress 155,319
Infrastructure 15,044,034
Buildings 2,198,618
Improvements 3,622,609
Equipment 5,631,467
Accumulated depreciation (14,454,950) 14,686,824

Required recording of the net pension liability and related deferred
inflows and outflows are not current financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds

Deferred outflow of resources 506,644
Deferred inflow of resources (16,437)
Net pension liability (486,323)

Long-term liabilities and related accrued interest are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not in the funds.

Compensated absences $ (231,000)

Net position of governmental activities $ 31,252,202

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TREMONTON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES., EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023
Special Transportation
Revenue Capacity Total
Capital Capital Nonmajor  Governmental
General Fire/EMS Projects Projects Funds Funds
Revenues:
Taxes $ 6,275,549 - - - 183,260 6,458,809
Licenses and permits 177,968 - - - - 177,968
Intergovernmental 948,776 163,307 - 106,769 18,000 1,236,852
Charges for services 707,522 1,170,352 - 72,433 315,496 2,265,803
Fines and forfeitures 90,755 - - - - 90,755
Miscellaneous 300,720 113,049 96,669 90,858 305,626 906,922
Total revenues 8,501,290 1,446,708 96,669 270,060 822,382 11,137,109
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 1,308,017 - - - 259,980 1,567,997
Public safety 2,152,172 1,303,344 - - - 3,455,516
Streets/highways 836,845 - - 2,815 - 839,660
Sanitation 478,845 - - - - 478,845
Cultural, parks and recreation 848,335 - - - 246,911 1,095,246
Health and human service 530,436 - - - 62,244 592,680
Capital Outlay:
General government - - - - 7,942 7,942
Public safety 11,912 99,867 - - 50,134 161,913
Streets/highways 23,329 - - 170,158 - 193,487
Cultural, parks and recreation 22,284 - - - 533,350 555,634
Health and human service - - - - - -
Debt Service:
Principal - 120,741 - - - 120,741
Interest - 1,255 - - - 1,255
Total expenditures 6,212,175 1,525,207 - 172,973 1,160,561 9,070,916
Excess of revenues over expenditures 2,289,115 (78,499) 96,669 97,087 (338,179) 2,066,193
Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in (out) (2,325,550) 358,500 300,000 600,000 1,067,050 -
Net other financing sources (uses) (2,325,550) 358,500 300,000 600,000 1,067,050 -
Change in fund balance (36,435) 280,001 396,669 697,087 728,871 2,066,193
Fund balance - July 1 2,129,225 1,848,720 2,655,141 2,499,306 5,593,909 14,726,301
Fund balance - June 30 $ 2,092,790 2,128,721 3,051,810 3,196,393 6,322,780 16,792,494

The accompanying notes are an integral

part of these financial statements
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CITY OF TREMONTON
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Net change in fund balance - Total governmental funds $

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimatec
useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital
outlays ($918,976) was more than depreciation ($861,945).

Governmental funds are not required to report revenues for capital assets
acquired or constructed by another entity and subsequently donated to the City.
During the year, the City assumed resonsibility for the donated assets and is
required to recognize estimated value of those assets as revenue.

Governmental funds are not required to report the changes in net pension
liability and the related adjustments to pension expense. These amounts are
reported in the Statement of Activities.

Bond proceeds and lease debt provide current financial resources to
governmental funds by issuing debt which increases long-term liabilities in the
Statement of Net Position. Repayment of bond and lease principal are
expenditures in the governmental funds:

Proceeds from issuance of debt $ -
Payments on leases 120,741

2,066,193

57,031

209,191

120,741

Change in net position of governmental activitie $

2,453,156

The accompanying notes are an integral part
of these financial statements.
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CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2023

Treatment Storm Total
Water Plant Drain Nonmajor Proprietary
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Current assets:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents  $ 3,527,230 6,706,181 1,208,659 1,602,857 13,044,927
Cash and cash equivalents 284,973 248,404 - - 533,377
Accounts receivable, net 210,726 164,666 18,032 23,115 416,539
Total current assets 4,022,929 7,119,251 1,226,691 1,625,972 13,994,843
Noncurrent assets:
Fixed assets, net 14,725,141 6,362,731 2,143,249 661,204 23,892,325
Total noncurrent assets 14,725,141 6,362,731 2,143,249 661,204 23,892,325
Total assets 18,748,070 13,481,982 3,369,940 2,287,176 37,887,168
Deferred outflow of resources
Pension related 102,046 101,006 - 20,039 223,091
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Bonds payable, current portion 483,000 - - - 483,000
Accounts payable 62,311 30,563 7,613 5,501 105,988
Accrued expenses 37,000 42,000 - 8,000 87,000
Deposits due customers 25,450 - - - 25,450
Total current liabilities 607,761 72,563 7,613 13,501 701,438
Noncurrent liabilities:
Commitments, long-term - - 51,580 - 51,580
Net pension liability 69,475 63,159 - 12,632 145,266
Bonds payble, long-term 6,190,000 - - - 6,190,000
Total liabilities 6,867,236 135,722 59,193 26,133 7,088,284
Deferred Inflow of Resources
Pension related 9,166 5,556 - 2,043 16,765
Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 8,052,141 6,362,731 2,143,249 661,204 17,219,325
Restricted - - 24,929 266,262 291,191
Unrestricted 3,921,573 7,078,979 1,142,569 1,351,573 13,494,694
Total net position $ 11,973,714 13,441,710 3,310,747 2,279,039 31,005,210

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements
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CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

For The Year Ended June 30,2023

Treatment Storm Total
Water Plant Drain Nonmajor Proprietary
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

Operating revenues:

Charges for services $ 2,170,636 1,963,174 191,092 253,040 4,577,942

Connection fees 22,680 - - 2,600 25,280

Miscellaneous income 49,715 2,956 - - 52,671

Total operating revenues 2,243,031 1,966,130 191,092 255,640 4,655,893
Operating expenses:

Salaries and benefits 507,803 513,719 33,966 73,998 1,129,486

Current expenses 905,500 517,472 29,925 44,871 1,497,768

Depreciation 352,541 565,450 66,827 44931 1,029,749

Total operating expenses 1,765,844 1,596,641 130,718 163,800 3,657,003
Operating income (loss) 477,187 369,489 60,374 91,840 998,890
Non-operating revenues
(expenses):

Impact fees 390,643 117,897 93,796 104,402 706,738

Interest income 184,582 238,766 41,876 55,184 520,408

Interest expense (167,966) - - - (167,966)

Net non-operating

revenues (expenses) 407,259 356,663 135,672 159,586 1,059,180

Change in net position 884,446 726,152 196,046 251,426 2,058,070
Net position - beginning 11,089,268 12,715,558 3,114,701 2,027,613 28,947,140
Net position - ending $ 11,973,714 13,441,710 3,310,747 2,279,039 31,005,210

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Impact fees collected
Collection on note receivable
Principal payments
Interest paid
Purchases of capital assets

Net cash provided by capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest and dividends received

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year

Shown in Statement of Net Position as:
Pooled cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents

CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

Treatment Storm Total
Water Plant Drain Nonmajor Proprietary
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ 2,284,133 1,991,854 190,913 255,606 4,722,506
(885,189) (532,606) (23,258) (41,868) (1,482,921)
(550,973) (543,874) (33,966) (81,028) (1,209,841)
847,971 915,374 133,689 132,710 2,029,744
390,643 117,897 93,796 104,402 706,738
98,793 - - - 98,793
(472,000) - (22,922) - (494,922)
(167,966) - - - (167,966)
(3,132,527) (106,666) (353,103) (17,494) (3,609,790)
(3,283,057) 11,231 (282,229) 86,908 (3,467,147)
184,582 238,766 41,876 55,184 520,408
184,582 238,766 41,876 55,184 520,408
(2,250,504) 1,165,371 (106,664) 274,802 (916,995)
6,062,707 5,789,214 1,315,323 1,328,055 14,495,299

$ 3,812,203 6,954,585 1,208,659 1,602,857 13,578,304

$ 3,527,230 6,706,181 1,208,659 1,602,857 13,044,927

284,973 248,404 - - 533,377

$ 3,812,203 6,954,585 1,208,659 1,602,857 13,578,304

(continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements
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Supplemental disclosures:

Reconciliation of operating income to

net cash provided by operating
activities:
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating
income to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts
receivable
Increase (decrease) in accounts
payable
Increase (decrease) in accrued
expenses
Change in pension related items
Increase (decrease) in deposits
due customers

Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating
activities

CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

(continued)

Treatment Storm Total
Water Plant Drain Nonmajor Proprietary
Fund Fund Fund Fund Activities

$ 477,187 369,489 60,374 91,840 998,890
352,541 565,450 66,827 44,931 1,029,749
37,652 25,724 (179) (34) 63,163

20,311 (15,134) 6,667 3,003 14,847
(10,000) - - (1,000) (11,000)
(33,170) (30,155) - (6,030) (69,355)

3,450 : : - 3,450

370,784 545,885 73,315 40,870 1,030,854

$ 847,971 915,374 133,689 132,710 2,029,744

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements
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CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of the City of Tremonton (the City) have been prepared in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the City
are discussed below.

Financial Reporting Entity

The City operates as an incorporated governmental entity within the State of Utah. The City
operates under the Council-Mayor form of government and provides the following services:
public safety (police, fire and ambulance), highway and streets, sanitation, recreation, public
improvements, planning and zoning, health and human services and general administrative
services. In addition, the City owns and operates water, sewer collection and storm drain
systems and a sewer treatment plant.

The City's basic financial statements include the accounts of all City operations. The accounting
policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting principles.

The City has created the Tremonton Redevelopment Agency #3 (RDA #3) and this entity has
been determined to be a blended component unit of the City. The accounts of this entity have
been appropriately blended into the City’s financial statements in accordance with GAAP.

The City has created the Tremonton Redevelopment Agency #2 (RDA#2) and this entity has
been determined to be a blended component unit of the City. The accounts of this entity have
been appropriately blended into the City’s financial statements in accordance with GAAP.

The City is a member of the Utah Telecommunications Open Infrastructure Agency (UTOPIA),
which was created as an interlocal cooperative agreement as provided in the laws of the State of
Utah. The City has determined that their investment in and involvement with UTOPIA is less
than other members and, therefore, has concluded that the financial amounts of UTOPIA should
not be included in these financial statements.

The City has no oversight responsibility for any other governmental entity since no other entities
are considered to be controlled by or dependent on the City. Control or dependence is
determined on the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, funding, and appointment of the
respective government board.
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CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basic Financial Statements - Government-Wide Statements

The City’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a
whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the City’s major funds). Both the government-
wide and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or
business type. The City’s public safety, highway and streets, sanitation, recreation, public
improvements, planning and zoning, health and human services and general administrative
services are classified as governmental activities. The City’s water, sewer, storm drain and
sewer treatment plant services are classified as business-type activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type
activities columns are (a) presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b) are reported on a
full accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as
well as long-term debt and obligations. The City’s net position is reported in three parts: net
investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. The City first
utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

Governmental activities are usually financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and
other non-exchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties for goods or services.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the
City’s functions and business-type activities (general, public safety, etc.). The functions are also
supported by general government revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain
intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.). The Statement of Activities
reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and
capital grants.

Program revenues must be directly associated with the function or a business-type activity.
Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants
while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs (by function or business-type activity) are normally covered by general revenue
(property or sales taxes, intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc.). The City does not

allocate indirect costs.

These government-wide statements focus more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and
the change in the City’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.
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CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Basic Financial Statements — Fund Statements

The City’s accounting system is organized on a fund basis. A fund is a fiscal and accounting
entity with a self-balancing set of accounts that the government establishes for accountability
purposes in accordance with statutes, laws, regulations, restrictions, or specific purposes.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. The
emphasis of fund financial statements is on major individual funds, as defined by GASB
Statement No. 34, with each displayed as a separate column. All remaining governmental and
proprietary funds are aggregated and reported as non-major funds in their respective fund
financial statements.

The following fund types are used by the City.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement is upon determination of financial position
and changes in financial position (sources, uses and balances of financial resources) rather than

upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds of the City.

e  The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

e  The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes or the revenues

have been separated to account for specific operations of the government.

e  The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the resources accumulated for
future capital improvements and the acquisition or construction of those improvements.

The City’s major governmental funds consist of the following:
General Fund - see description above.

Capital Projects — This fund accounts for the accumulation of funds for general capital
projects for any City activity. It also accounts for any expenditures for these capital projects.

Transportation Capacity Capital Projects — This fund accounts for the accumulation of
funds for improvements in transportation capacity within the City.

Fire/EMS — This fund accounts for the operations of the City’s fire protection and
ambulance services. The fund primarily collects fees from ambulance services provided.
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CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The City’s nonmajor governmental funds consist of the Parks Fund, Recreation Fund, Food
Pantry Fund and RDA#2, which are special revenue funds, and Capital Projects Funds. The
Parks Fund collects fees to improve city parks. The Recreation fund collects fees for providing
recreation programs for citizens. The Food Pantry Fund collects donations or receives grants and
provides temporary assistance to citizens in the form of food. The RDA#2 fund and the RDA#3
fund develop and build projects to promote economic activity within a portion of the City. These
funds account for the operations of this blended component unit. The Capital Projects Funds
accumulate resources for future capital projects.

Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income, changes
in net position, financial position and cash flows. The generally accepted accounting principles
applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of
the proprietary funds of the City. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses
from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition, such as investment
earnings, are reported as non-operating.

e  Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is
charged to external users for goods or services and the activity is (a) financed with debt
that is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has third party requirements
that the cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and
charges or (c) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover
similar costs.

The City’s major enterprise funds consist of the following:
Water Fund - This fund accounts for the water services provided to City residents.

Treatment Plant Fund - This fund accounts for the treatment of sewer products collected by
the City sewer system and by the City of Garland, Utah.

Storm Drain Fund — This fund accounts for the building and maintenance of the storm
drainage system for the City.

The City’s nonmajor enterprise funds consist of the Sewer Fund. This fund accounts for the
sewer collection activities of the City.
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CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures/expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates to the timing of the
measurements made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

Accrual

Both governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements and
the proprietary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the
year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Modified Accrual

The governmental funds financial statements are presented on the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when they
are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within
60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are generally recognized under the
modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred. However, debt
service and compensated absences expenditures are recorded only when payment is due.

Financial Statement Amounts

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Net Position, the term “cash and cash equivalents” includes
all demand deposit accounts, savings accounts, or other short-term, highly liquid investments.
For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the enterprise funds consider all highly liquid
investments (including restricted assets) with original maturities of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

During the course of operations, transactions sometimes occur between individual funds that

may result in amounts owed between funds. Interfund receivables and payables between funds
within governmental activities are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Accounts Receivable and Due From Other Governments

Receivables consist of all revenues earned at year-end but received after year-end. Allowances
for uncollectible accounts are based upon historical trends. Receivable balances for the
governmental activities include sales taxes, franchise taxes, property taxes, garbage collection
fees, and ambulance fees. Business-type activities report receivables for utility service fees.

Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical costs. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value
as of the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly
extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and
maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation on all depreciable assets has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 30 to 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 10 to 50 years
Infrastructure 50 years
Water and sewer lines 15 to 60 years
Equipment 3 to 20 years

In the governmental fund financial statements, the acquisition or construction of capital assets is
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures.

Compensated Absences

The City’s policies regarding vacation time permit employees to accumulate unused vacation
leave. The City’s policies regarding sick leave allow employees to receive up to one-half of their
accrued sick leave, limited to 45 days, as a termination benefit if they voluntarily retire or resign.
The liability for these compensated absences is recorded as long-term debt in the government-
wide statement for governmental activities and as accrued liabilities in the business-type
activities. The current portion of this debt is estimated based on historical trends. In the fund
financial statements, governmental funds do not report a liability for compensated absences
while proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred. Compensated absences related to
governmental activities are usually liquidated by the General Fund.
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CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Long-term Debt

The accounting treatment of long-term debt depends on whether the assets are used in
governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they are reported in the
government-wide or fund financial statements.

All long-term debt to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources is reported as
liabilities in the government wide financial statements. The long-term debt consists of bonds
payable, leases payable, notes payable, and accrued compensated absences. The City generally
uses the General Fund to liquidate long-term debt related to government activities. However, the
Fire/EMS Fund is used to liquidate debt used to acquire ambulance or fire protection vehicles
and equipment.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund financial
statements. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and payment of principal
and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting for proprietary fund long-term debt is the
same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide statements.

Financial Statement Amounts

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred
outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources,
represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has one item related to
pensions that is the result of actuarial calculations.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources,
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and will not be recognized
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. One item, property taxes, is reported in the
governmental funds balance sheet as a deferred inflow of resources due to the property taxes
being recognized as receivables prior to the period for which the taxes are levied. These amounts
are also reported as deferred inflows of resources on the government-wide statement of net
position. The City also has one item related to pensions that is the result of actuarial calculations.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Equity Classifications

Equity in the government-wide financial statements is classified as net position and displayed in
three components:

Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any
bonds, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of these assets;

Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on the use
whether by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors or laws and regulations of other
governments; or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation;
Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

Equity in the Governmental Fund statements is required to be separated into the following
categories, with the applicable definition:

Nonspendable - Amounts that are not in a spendable form (such as inventory or prepaid
expenses) or are required to remain intact;

Restricted - Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their provider, through
constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation;

Committed - Amounts constrained to a specific purpose by the government itself, using
its highest level of decision-making authority, used first for unrestricted expenditures;

Assigned - Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose: intent can be
expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body
delegates the authority (for the City, this authority has be delegated to the management of
the City by Council resolution), used after committed funds are exhausted for unrestricted
expenditures;

Unassigned - Amounts that are available for any purpose.

As required by State law, the City is required to maintain a minimum of 5% and a maximum of
35% of the total current year General Fund revenues in unassigned, assigned or committed fund
balance.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide financial statements.
Revenues

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, fees-in-lieu, and interest associated with the current
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. Property taxes associated with future periods are deferred.
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the City
receives cash. Grants are usually reimbursable grants and are thus recognized as revenue at the
time the expenditures are made.

Subsidies and grants to proprietary funds, which finance either capital or current operations, are
reported as non-operating revenue based on GASB Statement No. 33. In addition, other
revenues that do not result from providing services are reported as non-operating revenues.

Expenses/Expenditures

When an expense/expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available, it is the City’s general policy to use restricted resources first.

For proprietary fund financial statements, operating expenses are those that result from providing
services to customers.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Utah Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) and additions to/deductions
from URS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported
by URS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported
at fair value.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses/expenditures during the reporting period. Actual amounts could differ from those
estimates.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Property Tax Calendar

Box Elder County assesses all taxable property other than centrally assessed property, which is
assessed through the State, by May 22 of each year. The City must adopt a final tax rate prior to
June 22, which is then submitted to the State for approval. Property taxes are due on November
30. Delinquent taxes are subject to a penalty of 2% or $10.00, whichever is greater. After
January 16 of the following year, delinquent taxes and penalties bear interest at 6% above the
federal discount rate from January 1 until paid.

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments

The State of Utah Money Management Council has the responsibility to advise the State
Treasurer about investment policies, promote measures and rules that will assist in strengthening
the banking and credit structure of the State, and review the rules adopted by the State of Utah
Money Management Act that relate to the deposit and investment of public funds.

The City follows the requirements of the Utah Money Management Act (Utah Code, Section 51,
Chapter 7) in handling its depository and investment transactions. The Act requires the
depositing of funds in a qualified depository. The Act defines a qualified depository as any
financial institution whose deposits are insured by an agency of the Federal Government and has
been certified by the State Commissioner of Financial Institutions as meeting the requirements of
the Act and adhering to the rules of the Utah Money Management Council.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2023

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments (continued)

At June 30, 2023, the City’s deposits and investments consisted of the following:

Financial Statement Description

Pooled cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand
Demand deposits
Public Treasurer’s Investment Pool

Total pooled cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:
Public Treasurer’s Investment Pool

Total cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents:
Public Treasurer’s Investment Pool

Total restricted cash and cash equivalents $

Total all deposits and investments
Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk

Deposits Investments Cash Total
$ - - 280 280
1,151,810 - - 1,151,810
- 28.609.198 - 28,609,198
$ 1.151.810 28.609.198 280 29.761,288
$ - 533,377 - 533,377
$ - 533,377 - 533,377
$ - i} - -
$ 1,151,810 29,142,575 280 30,294,665

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be
returned. The City does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk. As of June 30,
2023, $802,324 of the City’s bank balances of $1,216,770 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

Investments

The Money Management Act defines the types of securities authorized as appropriate

investments for the City and the conditions for making investments transactions. Investment
transactions may be conducted only through qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly

with the issuers of investment securities.
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Note 2 - Deposits and Investments (continued)

Statutes authorize the City to invest in negotiable or nonnegotiable deposits of qualified
depositories and permitted negotiable depositories; repurchase and reverse repurchase
agreements; commercial paper that is classified as “first tier” by two nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations, one of which must be Moody’s Investor Services or Standard &
Poor’s; bankers’ acceptances; obligations of the United States Treasury including bills, notes,
and bonds; bonds, notes, and other indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State; fixed rate
corporate obligations and variable rate securities rated “A” or higher, or the equivalent of “A” or
higher, by two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations; shares or certificates in a
money market mutual fund as defined in the Act; and the Utah State Public Treasurer’s
Investment Fund.

The Utah State Treasurer’s Office operates the Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund (PTIF). The
PTIF is available for investment of funds administered by any Utah public treasurer.

The PTIF is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. The PTIF is authorized and
regulated by the Money Management Act, Section 51-7, Utah Code Annotated, 1953, as
amended. The Act established the Money Management Council, which oversees the activities of
the State Treasurer and the PTIF and details the types of authorized investments. Deposits in the
PTIF are not insured or otherwise guaranteed by the State of Utah, and participants share
proportionately in any realized gains or losses on investments.

The PTIF operates and reports to participants on an amortized cost basis. The income, gains, and
losses — net of administration fees, of the PTIF are allocated based upon the participant’s average
daily balance. The fair value of the PTIF investment pool is approximately equal to the value of
the pool shares.

The City measures and records its investments using fair value measurement guidelines
established by generally accepted accounting principles. These guidelines recognize a three-

tiered fair value hierarchy, as follows:

e Level 1: Quoted prices for identical investments in active markets;
e Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted market prices; and
e Level 3: Unobservable inputs.

At June 30, 2023, the City determined that all the investments are Level 2 investments.
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Note 2 - Deposits and Investments (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The City’s policy for managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from
increasing interest rates is to comply with the State’s Money Management Act. Section 51-7-11
of the Act requires that the remaining term to maturity of investments may not exceed the period
of availability of the funds to be invested. The Act further limits the remaining term to maturity
on all City investments in commercial paper, bankers’ acceptances, fixed rate negotiable
deposits, and fixed rate corporate obligations to 270-365 days or less. In addition, variable rate
negotiable deposits and variable rate securities may not have a remaining term to final maturity
exceeding 2 years.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The City’s policy for reducing exposure to credit risk is to comply with the State’s
Money Management Act as previously discussed. At June 30, 2023, all investments held by the
City are in the PTIF which is unrated or an open-ended money market mutual fund that is
unrated.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s
investment in a single issuer. The City’s policy for reducing this risk is to comply with the Rules
of the Money Management Council. Rule 17 of the Money Management Council limits
investments in a single issuer of commercial paper and corporate obligations to 5-10%
depending upon the total dollar amount held in the portfolio.

Custodial Credit Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City’s policy for custodial risk is to
use the PTIF whenever possible. As of June 30, 2023, all of the City’s investments were in the
PTIF.
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Note 3 - Accounts Receivable and Due From Other Governments

The City’s accounts receivable and due from other governments at June 30, 2023, consist of:
Governmental activities
Accounts receivable:

General fund:

Garbage $ 60,026
Utility franchise fees 94,963
Other 12,382
Maintenance agreements 14,936
Total general fund 182,307
Fire/EMS fund:
Ambulance fees 966,412
Less allowance for uncollectible accounts (330.000)
Total Fire/EMS fund 636,412
Total accounts receivable $ 818,719

Due from other governments:

General fund:

Property taxes - deferred to future periods $ 3,055,240

Property tax - current 22,527

Class "C" roads 134,856

Sales tax 532,463

Other 46,031

Total general fund 3,791,117
Redevelopment Agency #2:

Property taxes - deferred to future periods 190,000

Total due from other governments $ 3,981,117
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Note 3 - Accounts Receivable and Due From Other Governments (continued)

Business-type activities

Accounts receivable:

Water fund:
Utility services and fees $ 210,726
Treatment Plant fund:
Sewer services and fees 164,666
Storm Drain fund:
Storm drain fees 18,032
Nonmajor fund accounts receivable 23.115
Total accounts receivable $ 416,539

Note 4 — Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the fiscal year consisted of the following:

The General Fund transferred $300,000 to Capital Projects fund and $600,000 to the
Transportation Capacity Capital Projects Fund for future capital projects. Additionally, the
General Fund also transferred $358,500 to the Fire/EMS Fund. The General Fund also
transferred $900,000 to a non-major capital project fund and $167,050 to the Recreation Fund.

Note 5 — Note Receivable

In a prior year, the City entered into an agreement to sell land to an individual for $120,000. The
note bore interest at 6%. The balance was paid during the fiscal year.
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June 30, 2023

Capital asset changes occurring for the year ended June 30, 2023, are as follows:

Governmental activities

Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets not
being depreciated

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings
Infrastructure
Improvements
Equipment

Total capital assets
being depreciated

Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Infrastructure
Improvements other
than buildings
Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Total governmental activities
capital assets, net

July 1, June 30,
2022 Additions  Deletions Transfers 2023

1,922,652 567,075 - - 2,489,727
168.045 80.354 - (93,080) 155.319
2,090,697 647.429 - (93.080) 2.645.046
2,105,538 - - 93,080 2,198,618
15,020,705 23,329 - - 15,044,034
3,447,465 175,144 - - 3,622,609
5.629.668 73.074 (71.275) - 5.631.467
26.203.376 271.547 (71.275) 93.080 26.496.728
(993,973) (66,391) - - (1,060,364)
(6,137,123) (293,702) - - (6,430,825)
(2,390,269) (85,589) - - (2,475,858)
(4.142.915) (416.263) 71,275 - (4.,487.903)
(13,664.280) (861.945) 71,275 - (14.454.950)
12.539.096 (590.398) - 93.080 12.041.778
$ 14,629,793 57,031 - - 14,686,824
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Note 6 - Capital Assets (continued)

Business-type activities

July 1, June 30,
2022 Additions  Deletions  Transfers 2023
Capital assets not being
depreciated:
Land $ 334,900 858,120 - - 1,193,020
Construction in process 3,556,070 1,705,604 - - 5,261,674
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 3.890.970  2.563.724 - - 6.454.694
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 7,876,114 - - - 7,876,114
Equipment and vehicles 7,450,833 18,817 - - 7,469,950
Improvements 4,765,276 435,510 - - 5,200,786
Water and sewer lines 8,429,203 15,000 - - 8,444,203
Total capital assets being
depreciated 28,521,426 469,327 - - 28,990,753
Accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings (2,080,519)  (299,221) - - (2,379,740)
Equipment and vehicles (4,275,838)  (447,688) - - (4,723,526)
Improvements (1,203,407) (72,360) - - (1,275,767)
Lines (2.963.609) _ (210.480) - - (3.174.089)
Total accumulated depreciation  (10,523.373) (1,029,749) - - (11,553,122)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 17,998,053 (560.422) - - 17,437,631
Total business-type activities
capital assets, net $ 21,889,023 2,003,302 - - 23,892,325

Depreciation expense of governmental activities was charged to functions as follows:

General government $ 16,531
Streets and highways 322,887
Public safety 310,923
Culture, parks and recreation 130,391
Health and human services 81,213
Total depreciation expense $ 861,945
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Note 7 - Refundable Deposits

The City requires a security deposit from customers for utility services. The deposit, reported as a
liability in the Water Fund, covers garbage pickup, water charges, and sewer services. Security
deposits in the Water Fund of $25,450 were held by the City at June 30, 2023.

Note 8 - Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for fiscal year ending June 30, 2023, was as follows:

Due
Beginning Ending Within
Balance = Additions Reductions  Balance One year
Governmental activities
Bonds payable $ - - - - -
Compensated absences 208,000 146,000 (123,000) 231,000 -
Leases payable 120,741 - (120,741) - -
Total governmental
long-term liabilities $ 328,741 146,000 (184,168) 231,000 -
Business-type activities
Bonds payable $ 7,145,000 - (472,000) 6,673,000 483,000
Total business-type
long-term liabilities $ 7,145,000 - (472,000) 6,673,000 483,000

Governmental Activities

At the end of fiscal 2023, there was no long-term debt other than compensated absences.
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Note 8 — Long-Term Liabilities (continued)

Business-type Activities

In May 2019, the City issued Water Revenue Bonds Series 2019 for $3,400,000 to finance the
construction of a secondary water system and purchase water rights. The bonds bear interest at
2.522% and mature on May 15, 2034. Principal payments began on May 15, 2021. The bonds are
secured by the revenues from the Water Fund. The City is required to maintain water rates
sufficient to provide Net Revenues plus Other Available Funds equal to or in excess of 110% of
the Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement for such year plus a sufficient amount to fund
the Debt Service Reserve Fund for the Bonds. For the fiscal year 2023, the debt service
requirement is approximately $291,000. The management of the City believes that as of June 30,
2023, the City was in compliance with the covenants of the outstanding revenue bonds.

In April 2021, the City issued Water Revenue Bonds Series 2021 for $4,400,000 to finance the
construction of a secondary water system and purchase water rights. The bonds bear interest at
2.242% and mature on May 15, 2036. Principal payments will begin on May 15, 2022. The
bonds are secured by the revenues from the Water Fund. The City is required to maintain water
rates sufficient to provide Net Revenues plus Other Available Funds equal to or in excess of
125% of the Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement for such year plus a sufficient amount
to fund the Debt Service Reserve Fund for the Bonds. For the fiscal year 2023, the debt service
requirement is approximately $350,000. The management of the City believes that as of June 30,
2023, the City was in compliance with the covenants of the outstanding revenue bonds.

Business-type activities bonds payable were comprised of the following as of June 30, 2023:
$3,400,000 water revenue bonds due to JP Morgan
Chase Bank in annual installments ranging

from $205,000 to $284,000 plus interest at 2.522% $  2,768.000

$4,400,000 water revenue bonds due to JP Morgan
Chase Bank in annual installments ranging

from $239,000 to $342,000 plus interest at 2.242% $  3.905.000
Total business-type activities bonds payable $ 6,673,000
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Note 8 — Long-Term Liabilities (continued)

The annual requirements to amortize the bonds payable of the business-type activities as of June
30, 2023, were as follows:

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total
2024 $ 483,000 157,359 640,359
2025 495,000 145,911 640,911
2026 507,000 134,178 641,178
2027 519,000 122,159 641,159
2028 531,000 109,853 640,853
2029-2033 2,850,000 354,295 3,204,295
2034-2036 1,288,000 52,518 1,340,518
Totals $ 6,673,000 1,076,274 7,749,274

Note 9 - Retirement Plans

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan description: Eligible plan participants are provided with pensions through the Utah
Retirement Systems (Systems). The Systems are comprised of the following pension trust funds:

Public Employees Noncontributory Retirement System (Noncontributory System); is a
multiple employer, cost sharing, public employee retirement system.

The Public Safety Retirement System (Public Safety System) is a cost-sharing, multiple-
employer public employee retirement system.

Tier 2 Public Employee Contributory Retirement System (Tier 2 Public Employees
System) and the Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter Contributory Retirement System
(Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter System) are multiple employer, cost sharing, public
employee retirement systems.

The Tier 2 Public Employees System became effective July 1, 2011. All eligible employees

beginning on or after July 1, 2011, who have no previous service credit with any of the Utah
Retirement Systems, are members of the Tier 2 Retirement System.
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Note 9 - Retirement Plans (continued)

The Systems are established and governed by the respective sections of Title 49 of the Utah
Code Annotated 1953 as amended. The Systems’ defined benefit plans are amended statutorily
by the State Legislature. The Utah State Retirement Office Act in Title 49 provides for the
administration of the Systems under the direction of the Utah State Retirement Board (Board)
whose members are appointed by the Governor. The Systems are fiduciary funds defined as
pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds. URS is a component unit of the State of Utah.
Title 49 of the Utah Code grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms. URS
issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained by writing to Utah Retirement
Systems, 560 East 200 South, Salt Lake City, UT 84102 or by visiting the website:
www.urs.org/general/publicatons.

Benefits provided: URS provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Retirement benefits
are as follows:

System Final Years of service required Benefit percent COLA**
Average and/or age eligible for per year of
Salary benefits service
Noncontributory Highest 30 years any age 2.0% per year all ~ Up to 4%
System 3 years 25 years any age® years
20 years age 60*
10 years age 62*
4 years age 65
Tier 2 Public Highest 35 years any age 1.5% per year all  Up to
Employees 5 years 20 years age 60* years 2.5%
System 10 years age 62*
4 years age 65
Public Safety Highest 20 years any age 2.5% peryearup Up to
System 3 years 10 years age 60 to 20 years; 2.0%  2.5% or
4 years age 65 per year over 20 4%
years depending
on the
employer
Tier 2 Public Highest 25 years any age 1.5% peryearto  Up to
Safety and 5 years 20 years age 60* June 20, 2020 2.5%
Firefighter 10 years age 62* 2% per year July
System 4 years age 65 2020 to present

* With actuarial reductions
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Note 9 - Retirement Plans (continued)

** All post-retirement cost-of-living adjustments are non-compounding and are based on the original benefit. The
cost-of-living adjustments are limited to the actual Consumer Price Index (CPI) increase for the year, although

unused CPI increase not met may be carried forward to subsequent years.

Contributions: As a condition of participation in the systems, employers and/or employees are
required to contribute certain percentages of salary and wages as authorized by statue and
specified by the URS Board. Contributions are actuarially determined as an amount that, when
combined with employee contributions (where applicable) is expected to finance the costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any

unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

Contribution rates as of June 30, 2023 are as follows:

Employee
Paid
Noncontributory System
15 — Local Government Tier 1 N/A
111 — Local Government Tier 2 N/A
Public Safety Retirement System
75 — Other Division A
With 4% COLA N/A
122 — Tier 2 DB Hybrid 2.59 %
Firefighters Retirment System
31 — Other Division A 15.05 %
132 — Tier 2 DB Hybrid 2.59 %
Tier 2 Defined Contribution Only
211 — Local Government N/A
222 — Public Safety N/A
232 — Firefighters N/A

Employer

Paid

17.97 %
16.01 %

35.71 %
26.99 %

3.61 %
14.08 %

6.19 %
12.99 %
0.08 %

Employer
401(k)

N/A
0.18 %

N/A
N/A

N/A
N/A

10.00 %
14.00 %
14.00 %

Tier 2 rates include a statutory required contribution to finance the unfunded actuarial accrued

liability of the Tier 1 plans.
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Note 9 - Retirement Plans (continued)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the employer and employee contributions to the Systems
were as follows:

Employer Employee
System Contributions Contributions
Noncontributory System $ 228,503 N/A
Public Safety System 150,819 N/A
Tier 2 Public Employee System 83,197 N/A
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 129,876 15,866
Tier 2 DC Only 2,968 N/A
Tier 2 DC Public Safety and Firefighter 8.846 _N/A
Total Contributions $ 604,211 15,866

Contributions reported are the URS Board approved required contributions by System.
Contributions in the Tier 2 System are used to finance the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1
System.

Pension Assets, Liabilities, Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2022, we reported a net pension asset of $-0- and a net pension liability of $631,589.

Proportionate Net Pension Net Pension

Share Asset Liability

Noncontributory System 0.1345942 % $ - $ 230,526
Public Safety System 0.2790947 % - 360,890
Tier 2 Public Employees System 0.0224915 % - 24,491
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter  0.1879756 % - 15.682
Total net pension asset/liability $ - $ 631,589

The net pension asset and liability was measured as of December 31, 2022, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension asset and liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of January 1, 2022, and rolled-forward using generally accepted actuarial procedures.
The proportion of the net pension asset and liability was based on actual historical employer
contributions to the System during the plan year over the total of all employer contributions to the
System during the plan year.

45-



CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Note 9 - Retirement Plans (continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2023, we recognized pension expense of $302,497. At June 30, 2023,
we reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions

from the following sources:

Deferred

Outflows of

Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 95,626

Changes in assumptions 65,328

Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments 261,850
Changes in proportion and differences between

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 18,994

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 287.937

Total $ 729,735

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

$ 6,172
2,554

The $287,937 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions results from
contributions made by us prior to our fiscal year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of
December 31, 2022. These contributions will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the upcoming fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:

Deferred Outflows
Year Ended December 31 (Inflows) of Resources
2023 $  (110,547)
2024 66
2025 106,202
2026 389,727
2027 3,526
Thereafter 19,623

Actuarial assumptions: The total pension liability in the December 31, 2022, actuarial valuation
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:
Inflation 2.50 percent
Salary increases 3.25 — 9.25 percent, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 6.85 percent, net of pension plan investment

expense, including inflation
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CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Note 9 - Retirement Plans (continued)

Mortality rates were adopted from an actuarial experience study dated January 1, 2020. The
retired mortality tables are developed using URS retiree experience and are based on gender,
occupation, and age as appropriate with a projected improvement using 80% of the ultimate rates
from the MP-2019 improvement assumption using a base year of 2020. The mortality assumption
for active members is the PUB-2010 Employees Mortality Table for public employees, teachers
and public safety members, respectively.

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2022, valuation were based on the results of an
experience study of the demographic assumptions as of January 1, 2020, and a review of
economic assumptions as of January 1, 2021.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class and is applied consistently to each defined benefit pension plan. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The
target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Expected Return Arithmetic Basis
Real Return Long-term expected

Target Asset Arithmetic portfolio real
Asset Class Allocation Basis rate of return
Equity securities 35% 6.58 % 2.30 %
Debt securities 20 % 1.08 % 0.22 %
Real assets 18 % 5.72 % 1.03 %
Private equity 12 % 9.80 % 1.18 %
Absolute return 15 % 291 % 0.44 %
Cash and cash equivalents 0 % (0.11) % 0.00 %
Totals 100 % 517 %
Inflation 2.50 %
Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.67 %

The 6.85% assumed investment rate of return is comprised of an inflation rate of 2.50%, a real
return of 4.35% that is net of investment expense.
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CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Note 9 - Retirement Plans (continued)

Discount rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.85 percent. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions
will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from all participating
employers will be made at contractually required rates that are actuarially determined and
certified by the URS Board. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and
inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
The discount rate does not use the Municipal Bond Index Rate.

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the net pension asset and liability to changes in the
discount rate: The following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 6.85 percent, as well as what the proportionate share of the
net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point
lower (5.85 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (7.85 percent) than the current rate:

1% Discount 1%

Decrease Rate Increase

System (5.85 %) (6.85 %) (7.85 %)
Noncontributory System § 1,452,852 230,526 (790,792)
Public Safety System 1,162,249 360,890 (290,803)
Tier 2 Public Employees System 107,012 24,491 (39,081)
Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter 125,528 15,682 (71,620)

Pension plan fiduciary net position: Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued URS financial report.

Defined Contribution Savings Plans

The Defined Contribution Savings Plans are administered by the Utah Retirement Systems Board
and are generally supplemental plans to the basic retirement benefits of the Retirement Systems,
but may also be used as a primary retirement plan. These plans are voluntary tax-advantaged
retirement savings programs authorized under sections 401(k), 457(b) and 408 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Detailed information regarding plan provisions is available in the separately
issued URS financial report.

The City participates in the following Defined Contribution Savings Plans with the URS:
401(k) Plan, 457(b) Plan, Roth IRA Plan and Traditional IRA Plan.
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CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Note 9 - Retirement Plans (continued)

Employee and employer contributions to the Utah Retirement Defined Contribution Savings Plans
for the fiscal year ended June 30, were as follows:

2023 2022 2021
401(k) Plan — Employer $ 24,841 26,588 18,947
401(k) Plan — Employee 51,628 46,829 51,809
457(b) Plan — Employer - - -
457(b) Plan — Employee 13,680 47,134 10,061
Roth IRA Plan — Employee 48,678 42,716 29,651
Traditional IRA Plan — Employee 1,270 110 -

Note 10 — Redevelopment Agency

In accordance with Section 17C-1-605, Utah Code Annotated, all municipalities that have
established Redevelopment Agencies are required to disclose the following revenues and
expenditures associated with the various project areas.

RDA #3 RDA#2
Tax increment collected $ - 183,260
Tax increment payments - -
Expenditures:
Acquisition of property - -
Site improvements or site preparation - 183,260

Installation of public utilities - -
Administrative costs - -

RDA#2 functions under the community development act and had additional activities. However,
the activities were funded by interest income and a previous transfer from the general fund.
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CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Note 11 - Restricted Net Position/Restricted Fund Equity

Restricted net position and restricted fund equity represent moneys required to be maintained to
satisfy third party agreements or legal requirements. The following schedule details restricted
net position at June 30, 2022:

Governmental Activities

Non-major Fund:

Low-income housing $ 2,145,072
Park impact fee 195.129
Total Non-major Fund $ 2,340,201

Business-type Activities

Storm Drain Fund Impact fee $ 24929
Non-major Funds Impact fee 266,262
Total restricted net position $ 291,191

The City assesses impact fees for police, fire, roads, parks, water, sewer, storm drain and
treatment plant improvements as allowed by State law. Impact fees in the Treatment Plant Fund
represent fees assessed by the City for future capital improvements. These fees are not intended
to recover impact costs for growth in areas not assessed by the City.

Note 12 — Fund Equity

The City has assigned fund balances as follows:

Fire/EMS Fund - Public safety $ 2,128,721
Capital Projects Fund — Future capital projects $ 3,051,810

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Parks projects $ 388,675
Recreation 357,698
Food pantry 255,418
RDA #2 1,158,004
Capital projects 5,019,177

Total nonmajor governmental funds $ 7,178,972
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CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2023

Note 13 - Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions and natural disasters. The City participates in the Utah Local
Government Insurance Trust, a public entity risk pool to manage its risk of loss. The City pays
an annual premium to the trust for its general insurance coverage. The Trust was created to be
self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for
claims in excess of one million dollars for each insured event. There have been no claim
settlements that exceeded the City’s insurance coverage for the past three years.

Note 14 - Commitments

In October 2020, the City entered into a development agreement and annexation agreement with
a private business. As part of those agreements, the business agreed to provide land and water
shares for storm drainage improvements in exchange for a commitment from the City to
reimburse the business $77,500 from impact fees to be collected in the future. The City has
recognized this liability in the Storm Drain Fund.

During the year, the City entered into an agreement to replace a sewer main with a larger
capacity pipe. The project cost was approximately $1,287,000. The project began shortly before
the end of the fiscal year. The project was completed after the end of the fiscal year.

During the year, the City entered into an agreement to install ultra violet (UV) equipment at the
city sewer treatment plant. The contract was for approximately $440,000. The City paid 10%
down before the end of the year. The balance is payable upon delivery of the equipment.

During the year, the City received a grant from the State of Utah for improvements to the
downtown area of the City. The grant amount was $405,720 and the required match amount was
$173,880 and is a reimbursement type grant. The City plans to complete the project by the
summer of 2024. The State advanced 90% of the grants funds before the end of the fiscal year
but the City is required to report the costs of the project to the State. As such, the grant funds
were unearned revenues as of June 30, 2023.
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Note 15 - Joint Venture in UTOPIA

As discussed previously, the City is a member of UTOPIA, which is a joint venture between the
City and certain other local municipalities in the State of Utah (collectively called the Members).
UTOPIA was created to determine the feasibility of and constructing an open, carrier class, and
scalable telecommunications system that would provide transparent high-speed broadband,
voice, video, and data access for internal use by the Members and to every home and business
with the Member’s boundaries on a wholesale basis. The City has no on-going responsibility to
fund the operations of UTOPIA. However, the City is entitled to receive a share of any revenues
in excess of those needed to properly administer UTOPIA, as determined by the Board of
Directors of UTOPIA. According to the terms of the interlocal agreement, UTOPIA shall remain
a separate legal entity so long as there are any outstanding bonds. UTOPIA issues separate
financial statements which can be obtained from its offices in West Valley, Utah.

UTOPIA has issued revenue bonds which are guaranteed by the sales tax revenues of the
Members.

During fiscal year 2012, UTOPIA entered into an agreement with the participating cities and a
financial institution to retire the outstanding bonds and issue new bonds. As part of this
agreement, the pledge agreement with each participating city, including Tremonton City, was
amended. The new pledge agreement requires the City to pledge up to 100% of the City's sales
and use tax revenues but is limited by an annual maximum pledge. The annual maximum pledge
increases by approximately 2% each year until the end of the pledge in fiscal year 2040. During
fiscal year 2023, the City was required to pay approximately $396,000 to satisfy the pledge
agreement. For fiscal year 2024, the maximum pledge amount is approximately $403,000
(monthly amount of approximately $33,620). The sales and use tax revenues of the City for
fiscal year 2023 were approximately $2,901,000. The City plans to pay the pledged amount from
the General Fund. However, the City is allowed to be reimbursed by UTOPIA from the net
revenues of UTOPIA. In addition, in accordance with the terms of the agreement, the amounts
paid by the City are considered a loan to UTOPIA to be repaid from revenues from the system
but subordinate to any bond payment obligations. The City is allowed to charge interest up to 6%
from the date that each payment is made to UTOPIA.

Note 16 — Subsequent Events

Subsequent to year-end, the City received a grant from the State of Utah for $2,000,000 for the
construction of a secondary water system in a portion of the City. The City also awarded a
contract for construction of the secondary water system for approximately $1,350,000.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

CITY OF TREMONTON

GENERAL FUND

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
General government
Public safety
Streets/highways
Sanitation
Cultural, parks and recreation
Health and human services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer to Water fund
Transfer to Fire/EMS fund
Transfer to Capital Projects fund
Transfer from (to) non-major fund

Net other financing sources (uses)

Change in fund balance

Fund balance - July 1

Fund balance - June 30

For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

Variance
Budgeted Amounts Favorable
Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)
$ 5,193,000 5,193,000 6,275,549 1,082,549
226,200 226,200 177,968 (48,232)
695,600 813,700 948,776 135,076
599,700 661,800 707,522 45,722
70,000 70,000 90,755 20,755
125,600 234,700 300,720 66,020
6,910,100 7,199,400 8,501,290 1,301,890
1,321,950 1,393,250 1,308,017 85,233
2,190,400 2,326,100 2,164,084 162,016
882,400 982,100 860,174 121,926
436,700 495,500 478,845 16,655
928,700 961,500 870,619 90,881
477,500 563,000 530,436 32,564
6,237,650 6,721,450 6,212,175 509,275
672,450 477,950 2,289,115 1,811,165
(358,500) (358,500) (358,500) -
(300,000) (300,000) (300,000) -
(167,050) (1,667,050) (1,667,050) -
(825,550) (2,325,550) (2,325,550) -
$ (153,100) (1,847,600) (36,435) 1,811,165
2,129,225
$ 2,092,790
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CITY OF TREMONTON
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FIRE/EMS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 47,300 142,300 163,307 21,007
Charges for services 1,305,500 1,305,500 1,170,352 (135,148)
Interest income 3,000 3,000 42,163 39,163
Miscellaneous 7,500 36,200 70,886 34,686
Total revenues 1,363,300 1,487,000 1,446,708 (40,292)
Expenditures:
Public Safety 1,660,600 1,769,900 1,303,344 466,556
Capital outlay 227,000 147,000 99,867 47,133
Debt Service:
Principal 121,000 121,000 120,741 259
Interest 3,500 3,500 1,255 2,245
Total expenditures 2,012,100 2,041,400 1,525,207 516,193
Excess of revenue over expenditures (648,800) (554,400) (78,499) 475,901
Other financing sources:
Transfer in from non-major fund 91,000 91,000 - (91,000)
Transfer in from General fund 358,500 358,500 358,500 -
Total other financing sources 449,500 449,500 358,500 (91,000)
Change in fund balance $ (199,300) (104,900) 280,001 384,901
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CITY OF TREMONTON
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Grants $ - - - -
Interest income - - 96,669 96,669
Total revenues - - 96,669 96,669
Expenditures:

Culture, parks and recreation - - - -
Capital outlay 95,000 207,000 - 207,000
Debt service - - - -

Total expenditures 95,000 207,000 - 207,000

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer from (to) nonmajor funds - - - -

Transfer from (to) General fund 300,000 300,000 300,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 300,000 300,000 300,000 -
Change in fund balance $ 205,000 93,000 396,669 303,669

-57-



CITY OF TREMONTON
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
TRANSPORTATION CAPACITY CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

Variance
Original Final Favorable
Budget Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
Revenues:
Grants $ 287,000 287,000 106,769 (180,231)
Impact fees 124,400 124,400 72,433 (51,967)
Interest income - 20,000 90,858 70,858
Total revenues 411,400 431,400 270,060 (161,340)
Expenditures:
Streets and highways 5,000 5,000 2,815 2,185
Capital outlay 331,000 351,000 170,158 180,842
Debt service - - - -
Total expenditures 336,000 356,000 172,973 183,027
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer from (to) nonmajor funds - - - -
Transfer from (to) General fund - 600,000 600,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses) - 600,000 600,000 -
Change in fund balance $ 75,400 675,400 697,087 21,687

-58-



CITY OF TREMONTON
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY REPORTING AND RETIREMENT SCHEDULES
June 30, 2023

Budget Presentation

A Budgetary Comparison Schedule is presented for the General Fund and each major special
revenue fund as required by generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Budgets for
governmental funds are adopted on a legally enacted basis. The legally enacted basis differs
from a GAAP basis budget by including interfund loan payments as expenditures and excluding
note payable proceeds and the related expenditures from the presentation.

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all governmental and business-type funds. All
annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. Each fund adopts a “balanced budget” in
accordance with State law. As allowed by State law, the City Council may authorize increases to
or uses of unreserved fund balances. In the budget presentations, authorized increases to fund
balance are shown as positive changes in fund balance and authorized decreases are shown as
negative changes in fund balance.

Budget Adoption and Monitoring

On or before the first scheduled council meeting in May, all agencies of the City submit requests
for appropriation to the City's financial officers so that a budget may be prepared. The budget is
prepared by fund, function, and activity and includes information on the past year, current year
estimates and requested appropriations for the next fiscal year.

The proposed budget is presented to the City Council for review at the first scheduled meeting in
May. The City Council holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from, or change
appropriations, but may not change the form of the budget. The City financial officer must,
within the revenues and reserves, estimate any changes in the budget as available or revenue
estimates may be changed by an affirmative vote of a majority of the City Council. Within 30
days of adoption, the final budget must be submitted to the State Auditor. If there is no increase
to the certified tax rate, a final tax rate is adopted by June 22, and adoption of budgets is done
similarly.

State statute requires that City officers shall not incur expenditures or encumbrances in excess of
total appropriations for any department in the budget as adopted or subsequently amended.

Only the Council at a properly advertised public hearing can make increases in total fund
appropriations. The final budget information presented is after all approved amendments.

Retirement Plan — Changes in Assumptions

No changes were made in actuarial assumptions from the prior year’s valuation.

-59-



TREMONTON CITY

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

June 30, 2023

Noncontributory System 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.1292106% 0.1309382% 0.1271599% 0.1296792% 0.1281869% 0.1288403% 0.1306842% 0.1276723% 0.1345942%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 561,063 740,912 816,522 568,163 943,933 485,582 67,034 (731,193) 230,526
Covered employee payroll $ 1,100,059 1,114,459 1,110,941 1,142,662 1,145,740 1,152,407 1,157,857 1,153,983 1,296,597
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)

as a percentage of its covered payroll 51.00% 66.48% 73.50% 49.72% 82.39% 42.14% 5.78% -63.36% 17.78%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total pension liability 90.20% 87.80% 87.30% 91.90% 87.00% 93.70% 99.20% 108.70% 97.50%

In accordance with paragraph 81a of GASB 68, the City will need to disclose a 10-year history of their proportionate share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) in the RSI. The City is building this schedule prospectively as allowed by GASB 68.

The amount and percentages above were measured by URS as of December 31 of the year indicated.
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TREMONTON CITY
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
June 30, 2023

Public Safety System 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Proportion of the net pension liability (asset) 0.2030271% 0.2035400% 0.2086772% 0.2175551% 0.2196603% 0.3216855% 0.3273681% 0.2991667% 0.2790947%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) $ 255,323 364,591 423,454 341,270 667,998 516,504 271,795 (242,966) 360,890
Covered employee payroll $ 399,465 410,824 424,052 392,959 369,945 444,015 446,715 374,100 346,270
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)

as a percentage of its covered payroll 63.92% 88.75% 99.86% 86.85% 180.57% 116.33% 60.84% -64.95% 104.22%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the

total pension liability 90.50% 87.10% 86.50% 90.20% 84.70% 90.90% 95.50% 104.20% 93.60%

In accordance with paragraph 81a of GASB 68, the City will need to disclose a 10-year history of their proportionate share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) in the RSI. The City is building this schedule prospectively as allowed by GASB 68.

The amount and percentages above were measured by URS as of December 31 of the year indicated.
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Tier 2 Public Employees Retirmement System
Proportion of the net pension liability (asset)
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
Covered employee payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

TREMONTON CITY
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
June 30, 2023

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
0.0208342% 0.0252327% 0.0244407% 0.0217133% 0.0211401% 0.0232671% 0.0244658% 0.0221576% 0.0224915%
(631) (55) 2,726 1,914 9,054 5,233 3,519 (9,378) 24,491
102,358 163,016 200,432 212,883 246,784 323,218 391,174 411,372 490,362
-0.62% -0.03% 1.36% 0.90% 3.67% 1.62% 0.90% 2.28% 4.99%
103.50% 100.20% 95.10% 97.40% 90.80% 96.50% 98.30% 103.80% 92.30%

In accordance with paragraph 81a of GASB 68, the City will need to disclose a 10-year history of their proportionate share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) in the RSI. The City is building this schedule prospectively as allowed by GASB 68.

The amount and percentages above were measured by URS as of December 31 of the year indicated.
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Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighters Retirmement
Proportion of the net pension liability (asset)
Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
Covered employee payroll

Proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset)
as a percentage of its covered payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the
total pension liability

TREMONTON CITY
SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
June 30, 2023

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
0.0847925% 0.0496153% 0.0432021% 0.0595283% 0.0904154% 0.0553402% 0.0734754% 0.1483843% 0.1879756%
(1,254) (725) (375) (689) 2,265 5,206 6,590 (7,500) 15,682
35,028 29,524 35,695 62,766 121,052 91,229 141,914 354,843 578,360
-3.58% 2.46% -1.05% -1.10% 1.87% 5.71% 4.64% 2.11% 2.71%
120.50% 110.70% 103.60% 103.00% 95.60% 89.60% 93.10% 102.80% 96.40%

In accordance with paragraph 81a of GASB 68, the City will need to disclose a 10-year history of their proportionate share of the Net
Pension Liability (Asset) in the RSI. The City is building this schedule prospectively as allowed by GASB 68.

The amount and percentages above were measured by URS as of December 31 of the year indicated.
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TREMONTON CITY
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
For the Year Ended June 30

Noncontributory System 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Contractually required contribution $ 205,595 202,077 206,892 207,666 207,657 211,810 211,127 213,489 228,503
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (205,595) (202,077) (206,892) (207,666) (207,657) (211,810) (211,127) (213,489) (228,503)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - - - - - - - - -
Covered employee payroll $ 1,119,720 1,100,101 1,130,455 1,143,697 1,144,227 1,163,567 1,155,117 1,171,062 1,303,917
Contribution as a percentage of

covered employee payroll 18.36% 18.37% 18.30% 18.16% 18.15% 18.20% 18.28% 18.23% 17.52%

In accordance with paragraph 81a of GASB 68, the City will need to disclose a 10-year history of their schedule of contributions in
the RSI. The City is building this schedule prospectively as allowed by GASB 68.

Amounts presented were determined as of June 30 each year and were provided by the Utah Retirement Systems.

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll may be different than the Board certified rate due to rounding or other
administrative issues.
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Public Safety System
Contractually required contribution ~ $

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess) $
Covered employee payroll $

Contribution as a percentage of
covered employee payroll

In accordance with paragraph 81a of GASB 68, the City will need to disclose a 10-year history of their schedule of contributions in

TREMONTON CITY

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

For the Year Ended June 30

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
95,244 97,923 101,327 102,646 140,942 172,048 142,398 112,858 150,819
(95,244) (97,923) (101,327) (102,646) (140,942) (172,048) (142,398) (112,858) (150,819)
404,993 417,046 417,953 374,675 394,683 481,793 398,763 316,041 424,906

23.52% 23.48% 24.24% 27.40% 35.71% 35.71% 35.71% 35.71% 35.49%

the RSI. The City is building this schedule prospectively as allowed by GASB 68.

Amounts presented were determined as of June 30 each year and were provided by the Utah Retirement Systems.

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll may be different than the Board certified rate due to rounding or other

administrative issues.
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TREMONTON CITY
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
For the Year Ended June 30

Tier 2 Public Employees System* 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Contractually required contribution ~ $§ 20,718 27,569 32,318 32,139 42,615 58,021 62,973 70,560 83,197
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (20,718) (27,569) (32,318) (32,139) (42,615) (58,021) (62,973) (70,560) (83,197)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - - - - - - - - -
Covered employee payroll $ 138,673 184,904 216,752 212,883 274,231 370,504 398,565 439,076 519,658
Contribution as a percentage of

covered employee payroll 14.94% 14.91% 14.91% 15.10% 15.54% 15.66% 15.80% 16.07% 16.01%

In accordance with paragraph 81a of GASB 68, the City will need to disclose a 10-year history of their schedule of contributions in
the RSI. The City is building this schedule prospectively as allowed by GASB 68.

Amounts presented were determined as of June 30 each year and were provided by the Utah Retirement Systems.

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll may be different than the Board certified rate due to rounding or other
administrative issues.

* - Contributions in Tier 2 include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 systems. Tier 2 systems were
created effective July 1, 2011.
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TREMONTON CITY
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
For the Year Ended June 30

Tier 2 Public Safety and
Firefighter System* 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Contractually required contribution $ 7,442 7,838 8,819 24,427 26,689 22,361 60,780 95,898 129,876

Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (7,442) (7,838) (8,819) (24,427) (26,689) (22,361) (60,780) (95,898) (129,876)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - - - - - - - - -
Covered employee payroll $ 31,386 33,126 37,274 102,943 110,055 92,060 245,246 458,373 612,792

Contribution as a percentage of
covered employee payroll 23.71% 23.66% 23.66% 23.73% 24.25% 24.29% 24.78% 20.92% 21.19%

In accordance with paragraph 81a of GASB 68, the City will need to disclose a 10-year history of their schedule of contributions in
the RSI. The City is building this schedule prospectively as allowed by GASB 68.
Amounts presented were determined as of June 30 each year and were provided by the Utah Retirement Systems.

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll may be different than the Board certified rate due to rounding or other
administrative issues.

* - Contributions in Tier 2 include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 systems. Tier 2 systems were
created effective July 1, 2011.
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Tier 2 Public Employees Defined
Contibution Only System*

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)
Covered employee payroll

Contribution as a percentage of
covered employee payroll

In accordance with paragraph 81a of GASB 68, the City will need to disclose a 10-year history of their schedule of contributions in

TREMONTON CITY

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

For the Year Ended June 30

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
27 - - 67 654 2,312 2,318 2,464 2,968
27) - - (67) (654) (2,312) (2,318) (2,464) (2,968)
407 - - 994 9,776 34,561 34,656 36,829 47,954
6.63% 0.00% 0.00% 6.74% 6.69% 6.69% 6.69% 6.69% 6.19%

the RSI. The City is building this schedule prospectively as allowed by GASB 68.

Amounts presented were determined as of June 30 each year and were provided by the Utah Retirement Systems.

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll may be different than the Board certified rate due to rounding or other

administrative issues.

* - Contributions in Tier 2 include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 systems. Tier 2 systems were

created effective July 1, 2011.
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Tier 2 Public Safety and Firefighter
Defined Contribution Only System*

Contractually required contribution $

Contributions in relation to the
contractually required contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess) $
Covered employee payroll $

Contribution as a percentage of
covered employee payroll

In accordance with paragraph 81a of GASB 68, the City will need to disclose a 10-year history of their schedule of contributions in

TREMONTON CITY

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS

For the Year Ended June 30

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
4,197 4,638 4,957 5,586 5,895 6,123 7,455 7,750 8,846
(4,197) (4,638) (4,957) (5,586) (5,895) (6,123) (7,455) (7,750) (8,846)
32,310 35,707 38,159 43,002 45382 47,134 57,389 119,762 112,766
12.99% 12.99% 12.99% 12.99% 12.99% 12.99% 12.99% 6.47% 7.84%

the RSI. The City is building this schedule prospectively as allowed by GASB 68.

Amounts presented were determined as of June 30 each year and were provided by the Utah Retirement Systems.

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll may be different than the Board certified rate due to rounding or other

administrative issues.

* - Contributions in Tier 2 include an amortization rate to help fund the unfunded liabilities in the Tier 1 systems. Tier 2 systems were

created effective July 1, 2011.
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CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023
(With comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

2023
Variance
Final Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues:
Taxes:
General property taxes $ 2,017,000 1,974,631 (42,369) 1,927,525
Fee in lieu of property taxes 110,000 146,306 36,306 141,332
Sales and use taxes 2,100,000 2,901,776 801,776 2,655,977
Transient room taxes 38,000 50,340 12,340 46,987
Franchise taxes 928,000 1,202,496 274,496 1,052,024
Total taxes 5,193,000 6,275,549 1,082,549 5,823,845
Licenses and permits:
Business licenses and permits 34,000 38,240 4,240 42,090
Non-business licenses and permits 192,200 139,728 (52,472) 368,890
Total licenses and permits 226,200 177,968 (48,232) 410,980
Intergovernmental:
Class "C" roads 400,000 525,017 125,017 463,986
BRAG/Senior Citizens 306,500 346,544 40,044 276,101
Liquor allotment 10,000 12,597 2,597 11,195
Library grant 19,200 18,779 421) 27,294
Public safety grants 27,000 24,839 (2,161) 17,593
Streets grants - - - -
Health and human service grants - - - -
General government grants 51,000 21,000 (30,000) 1,106,536
Total intergovernmental 813,700 948,776 135,076 1,902,705
Charges for services:
Administrative fees to other funds 40,500 40,500 - 33,900
Sanitation 527,200 548,454 21,254 440,450
Cemetery 35,100 55,600 20,500 39,250
Culture, parks and recreation 15,800 27,008 11,208 17,130
Library 5,000 4,491 (509) 10,752
General government fees 32,100 27,132 (4,968) 48,801
Public safety fees 6,100 4,337 (1,763) 9,956
Health and human service fees - - - -
Total charges for services 661,800 707,522 45,722 600,239
Fine and forfeitures 70,000 90,755 20,755 76,630

(continued)
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(continued)
CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023
(With comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

2023
Variance
Final Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Miscellaneous revenues: $
Interest 80,500 136,464 55,964 18,250
Public safety donations 17,500 22,043 4,543 1,688
Culture, parks and recreation donations - 1,030 1,030 350
Health and human service donations 5,000 9,441 4,441 4,675
Collection from Utopia 103,000 103,125 125 60,397
Insurance proceeds 13,100 12,980 (120) 414
Proceeds from sale of property 15,600 15,637 37 14,348
Total miscellaneous 234,700 300,720 66,020 100,122
Total revenues 7,199,400 8,501,290 1,301,890 8,914,521
Expenditures:
General government:
City council 94,750 92,014 2,736 79,199
Court 109,100 103,996 5,104 99,237
City administration 228,200 217,641 10,559 175,812
Treasurer 80,600 67,517 13,083 59,550
Recorder 100,000 87,629 12,371 72,813
Professional 98,400 85,418 12,982 106,229
Economic development 27,000 26,327 673 37,617
Election 1,000 - 1,000 9,960
Civic center 54,400 47,142 7,258 29,603
Planning and zoning 106,400 95,183 11,217 125,145
Contribution to Utopia 400,000 396,173 3,827 388,409
Non-departmental 93,400 88,977 4,423 46,514
Total general government 1,393,250 1,308,017 85,233 1,230,088
Public safety:
Liquor law enforcement 13,000 10,046 2,954 11,132
Police department 2,153,300 2,009,549 143,751 1,630,331
Emergency management 600 - 600 -
Building inspection 159,200 144,489 14,711 133,110
Total public safety 2,326,100 2,164,084 162,016 1,774,573
Streets/highways:
Streets department 872,600 810,059 62,541 561,133
Class "C" roads 109,500 50,115 59,385 22,468
Total streets/highways 982,100 860,174 121,926 583,601

(continued)
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(continued)
CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023
(With comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

2023
Variance
Final Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Sanitation 495,500 478,845 16,655 401,523
Cultural, parks and recreation:
Parks and recreation 438,500 418,412 20,088 389,981
Golf course 3,000 - 3,000 1,274
Cemetery 50,500 42,989 7,511 43,514
Community events 110,400 62,560 47,840 59,549
Library 359,100 346,658 12,442 348,991
Total parks and recreation 961,500 870,619 90,881 843,309
Health and human services:
Senior programming 124,700 107,742 16,958 95,666
Congregate meals 121,000 109,895 11,105 91,943
Home delivered meals 260,500 256,891 3,609 215,433
Senior building 56,800 55,908 892 61,246
Total health and human services 563,000 530,436 32,564 464,288
Total expenditures 6,721,450 6,212,175 509,275 5,297,382
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 477,950 2,289,115 1,811,165 3,617,139
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer to Fire/EMS fund (358,500) (358,500) - (263,200)
Transfer to Capital Projects fund (300,000) (300,000) - (900,000)
Transfer to non-major fund (1,667,050) (1,667,050) - (1,074,800)
Transfer to Water fund - - - (1,089,536)
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,325,550) (2,325,550) - (3,327,536)
Change in fund balance $  (1,847,600) (36,435) 1,811,165 289,603
Fund balance - July 1 2,129,225 1,839,622
Fund balance - June 30 $ 2,092,790 2,129,225
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Assets
Pooled cash and cash equivalents

Due from other governments

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Revenues for future periods

Total deferred inflows of resources

Fund balance
Restricted
Assigned - Economic development
Assigned - Parks and recreation
Assigned - Health and human services

Assigned - Capital projects
Total fund balance

Total liabilities and fund balance

CITY OF TREMONTON
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2023

Equipment/
Special Vehicle Total Nonmajor
Revenue Capital Governmental
Parks Recreation Food Pantry RDA#2 RDA#3 Projects Funds
948,952 395,308 256,736 1,159,631 2,145,072 1,822,784 6,728,483
- - - 190,000 - - 190,000
948,952 395,308 256,736 1,349,631 2,145,072 1,822,784 6,918,483
- 37,610 1,318 1,627 - - 40,555
- 37,610 1,318 1,627 - - 40,555
365,148 - - 190,000 - - 555,148
365,148 - - 190,000 - - 555,148
195,129 - - - 2,145,072 - 2,340,201
- - - 1,158,004 - - 1,158,004
388,675 357,698 - - - - 746,373
- - 255,418 - - - 255,418
- - - - - 1,822,784 1,822,784
583,804 357,698 255,418 1,158,004 2,145,072 1,822,784 6,322,780
948,952 395,308 256,736 1,349,631 2,145,072 1,822,784 6,918,483




CITY OF TREMONTON

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
General government
Public Safety
Streets and highways
Culture, parks and recreation
Health and human services

Capital Outlay:
General government
Public Safety
Streets and highways
Culture, parks and recreation
Health and human services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer in from general fund

Total other financing sources
Change in fund balance
Fund balance - July 1

Fund balance - June 30

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

Equipment/
Special Vehicle Total Nonmajor
Revenue Capital Governmental
Parks Recreation Food Pantry RDA#2 RDA#3 Projects Funds

- - - 183,260 - - 183,260

- - 18,000 - - - 18,000
158,560 156,936 - - - - 315,496
27,490 9,643 113,281 42,634 79,108 33,470 305,626
186,050 166,579 131,281 225,894 79,108 33,470 822,382
- - - 237,203 22,7777 - 259,980
15,171 231,740 - - - - 246,911
- - 62,244 - - - 62,244

- - - - - 7,942 7,942

- - - - - 50,134 50,134
523,980 - - - - 9,370 533,350
539,151 231,740 62,244 237,203 22,777 67,446 1,160,561
(353,101) (65,161) 69,037 (11,309) 56,331 (33,976) (338,179)
- 167,050 - - - 900,000 1,067,050

- 167,050 - - - 900,000 1,067,050
(353,101) 101,889 69,037 (11,309) 56,331 866,024 728,871
936,905 255,809 186,381 1,169,313 2,088,741 956,760 5,593,909
583,804 357,698 255,418 1,158,004 2,145,072 1,822,784 6,322,780
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CITY OF TREMONTON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

PARKS SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For The Year Ended June 30,2023

(With comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

2023
Variance
Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues:
Impact fees $ 159,000 158,560 (440) 274,030
Grants - - - -
Donations - - - -
Interest 19,000 27,490 8,490 4,345
Total revenues 178,000 186,050 8,050 278,375
Expenditures:
Parks 570,000 539,151 30,849 121,171
Total expenditures 570,000 539,151 30,849 121,171
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (392,000) (353,101) 38,899 157,204
Other financing sources:
Transfer in from non-major fund - - - -
Loan from RDA#3 - - - -
Total other financing sources - - - -
Change in fund balance $  (392,000) (353,101) 38,899 157,204
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CITY OF TREMONTON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

RECREATION SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

(With comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

Revenues:
Grants
Charges for services
Donations
Interest

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Cultural, parks and recreation
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfer in from general fund

Total other financing sources

Change in fund balance

2023
Variance
Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
$ - - - -
114,800 156,936 42,136 133,779
200 - (200) -
250 9,643 9,393 851
115,250 166,579 51,329 134,630
282,300 231,740 50,560 239,831
282,300 231,740 50,560 239,831
(167,050) (65,161) 101,889 (105,201)
167,050 167,050 - 174,800
167,050 167,050 - 174,800
$ - 101,889 101,889 69,599
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CITY OF TREMONTON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

FOOD PANTRY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For The Year Ended June 30,2023

(With comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

2023
Variance
Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues:
Grants $ 18,000 18,000 - 9,525
Donations 35,000 104,694 69,694 75,354
Interest 500 8,587 8,087 881
Total revenues 53,500 131,281 77,781 85,760
Expenditures:
Health and human services 98,500 62,244 36,256 49,835
Total expenditures 98,500 62,244 36,256 49,835
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures (45,000) 69,037 114,037 35,925
Other financing sources:
Transfer in from general fund - - - -
Total other financing sources - - - -
Change in fund balance $ (45,000) 69,037 114,037 35,925
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CITY OF TREMONTON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

RDA#2 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

For The Year Ended June 30,2023

(With comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

Revenues:
Grants
Property tax increment
Interest

Total revenues
Expenditures:
General government
Streets

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfer in from other funds
Transfer in from general fund

Total other financing sources

Change in fund balance

2023
Variance
Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
$ - - - -
300,000 183,260 (116,740) 146,726
- 42,634 42,634 5,190
300,000 225,894 (74,1006) 151,916
415,000 237,203 177,797 162,671
415,000 237,203 177,197 162,671
(115,000) (11,309) 103,691 (10,755)
- - - 150,000
- - - 150,000
$ (115,000) (11,309) 103,691 139,245
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CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
RDA#3 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023
(With comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

2023
Variance
Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues:
Property taxes $ - - - -
Interest income - 77,045 77,045 13,981
Miscellaneous - 2,063 2,063 -
Total revenues - 79,108 79,108 13,981
Expenditures:
General government 360,000 22,777 337,223 -
Total expenditures 360,000 22,777 337,223 -
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures $ (360,000) 56,331 416,331 13,981
Other financing sources:
Transfer to the general fund - - - -
Transfer in from general fund - - - -
Total other financing sources - - - -
Change in fund balance $ (360,000) 56,331 416,331 13,981
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CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
EQUIPMENT/VEHICLE REPLACEMENT CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023
(With comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

2023
Variance
Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues:
Grants $ - - - -
Interest - 33,470 33,470 4,009
Total revenues - 33,470 33,470 4,009
Expenditures:
General government 12,000 7,942 4,058 56,168
Public safety 69,000 50,134 18,866 -
Streets and highways - - - 65,222
Culture, parks and recreation 12,000 9,370 2,630 9,754
Health and human services - - - -
Total expenditures 93,000 67,446 25,554 131,144
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures $ (93,000) (33,976) 59,024 (127,135)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer to Fire Fund 91,000 - (91,000) -
Proceeds from issuance of debt - - - -
Transfer in from general fund 900,000 900,000 - 150,000
Total other financing sources 991,000 900,000 (91,000) 150,000
Change in fund balance $ 898,000 866,024 (31,976) 22,865
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CITY OF TREMONTON

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

TRANSPORTATION CAPACITY CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

(With comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

2023
Variance
Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Revenues:
Grants $ 287,000 106,769 (180,231) -
Impact fees 124,400 72,433 (51,967) 64,574
Interest 20,000 90,858 70,858 8,797
Total revenues 431,400 270,060 (161,340) 73,371
Expenditures:
General government - - - -
Streets and highways 356,000 172,973 183,027 36,005
Total expenditures 356,000 172,973 183,027 36,005
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures $ 75,400 97,087 21,687 37,366
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfer to RDA#2 - - - -
Transfer in from general fund 600,000 600,000 - 600,000
Total other financing sources 600,000 600,000 - 600,000
Change in fund balance $ 675,400 697,087 21,687 637,366
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

CITY OF TREMONTON

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

WATER FUND

For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Operating revenues:
Services
Connection fees
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Current expenses
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Non-operating income (expense):
Impact fees
Interest expense
Interest income

Net income before capital income (expenses)

Capital budget income (expenses):
Principal payment
Transfer in from General Fund
Equipment and improvements

Total capital budget income (expenses)

Change in net position - budget basis

Adjustments from budget basis to GAAP basis:
Equipment and improvements
Principal payment
Pension expense
Bond proceeds

Change in net position - GAAP basis

2023
Variance
Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual

$ 2,199,000 2,170,636 (28,364) 2,093,134
50,100 22,680 (27,420) 78,921
146,600 49,715 (96,885) 50,180
2,395,700 2,243,031 (152,669) 2,222.235
603,400 540,973 62,427 472,238
828,900 905,500 (76,600) 689,676
450,000 352,541 97,459 351,392
1,882,300 1,799,014 83,286 1,513,306
513,400 444,017 (69,383) 708,929
400,000 390,643 (9,357) 521,734
(172,000) (167,966) 4,034 (190,975)
132,000 184,582 52,582 34,260
873,400 851,276 (22,124) 1,073,948
(472,000) (472,000) - (450,000)

- - - 1,089,536
(2,528,500) (2,555,788) (27,288) (2,439,208)
(3,000,500) (3,027,788) (27,288) (1,799,672)
$ (2,127,100) (2,176,512) (49,412) (725,724)
2,555,788 2,439,208

472,000 450,000

33,170 102,725

$ 884,446
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CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TREATMENT PLANT FUND
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

2023
Variance
Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Operating revenues:
Services $ 1,756,000 1,963,174 207,174 1,978,100
Miscellaneous - 2,956 2,956 2,687
Total operating revenues 1,756,000 1,966,130 210,130 1,980,787
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 644,000 543,873 100,127 492,335
Current expenses 534,900 517,472 17,428 410,732
Depreciation 455,000 565,450 (110,450) 589,750
Total operating expenses 1,633,900 1,626,795 7,105 1,492,817
Operating income 122,100 339,335 217,235 487,970
Non-operating income (expense):
Loan to other fund (300,000) - 300,000 -
Impact fees 120,000 117,897 (2,103) 298,508
Interest income 15,000 238,766 223,766 27,161
Interest expense - - - -
Income before capital income (expenses) (42,900) 695,998 738,898 813,639

Capital budget income (expenses):
Equipment and improvements (155,500) (106,666) 48,834 (918,297)
Principal payments on debt - - - -

Total capital budget expenses (155,500) (106,666) 48,834 (918,297)

Change in net position - budget basis $ (198,400) 589,332 787,732 (104,658)

Adjustments from budget basis to

GAAP basis:
Equipment and improvements 106,666 918,297
Pension expense 30,154 122,472

Principal payments on debt - -

Change in net position - GAAP basis $ 726,152 936,111
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

CITY OF TREMONTON

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

SEWER FUND

For The Year Ended June 30, 2023

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

Operating revenues:
Services
Connection fees
Miscellaneous

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits
Current expenses
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Non-operating income (expense):
Impact fees
Interfund loan
Interest income

Net income before capital income (expenses)

Capital budget income (expenses):
Equipment and improvements

Total capital budget income (expenses)

Change in net position - budget basis

$

$

Adjustments from budget basis to GAAP basis:

Pension expense
Equipment and improvements

Change in net position - GAAP basis
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251,426

2023
Variance
Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
233,700 253,040 19,340 232,620
8,500 2,600 (5,900) 11,700
242,200 255,640 13,440 244,320
98,600 80,028 18,572 67,022
50,000 44,871 5,129 37,825
50,000 44,931 5,069 44,931
198,600 169,830 28,770 149,778
43,600 85,810 42,210 94,542
132,000 104,402 (27,598) 105,853
300,000 - (300,000) -
5,000 55,184 50,184 6,044
480,600 245,396 (235,204) 206,439
(1,302,100) (17,494) 1,284,606 (18,951)
(1,302,100) (17,494) 1,284,606 (18,951)
(821,500) 227,902 1,049,402 187,488
6,030 21,694
17,494 18,951
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CITY OF TREMONTON
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STORM DRAIN FUND
For The Year Ended June 30, 2023
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2022)

2023
Variance
Favorable 2022
Budget Actual (Unfavorable) Actual
Operating revenues:
Services $ 177,000 191,092 14,092 175,667
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total operating revenues 177,000 191,092 14,092 175,667
Operating expenses:
Salaries and benefits 39,500 33,966 5,534 21,278
Current expenses 24,800 29,925 (5,125) 28,895
Depreciation 75,000 66,827 8,173 68,943
Total operating expenses 139,300 130,718 8,582 119,116
Operating income (loss) 37,700 60,374 22,674 56,551
Non-operating income (expense):
Impact fees 90,000 93,796 3,796 269,535
Developer donations - - - -
Interest income 4,000 41,876 37,876 5,683
Net income before capital income (expenses) 131,700 196,046 64,346 331,769
Capital budget income (expenses):

Equipment and improvements (460,100) (353,103) 106,997 -
Total capital budget income (expenses) (460,100) (353,103) 106,997 -
Change in net position - budget basis $ (328,400) (157,057) 171,343 331,769

Adjustments from budget basis to GAAP basis:
Equipment and improvements 353,103 -
Change in net position - GAAP basis $ 196,046 331,769
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Logan Office:
1011 West 400 North, Suite 100
Logan, UT 84323-0747

& JONES SIMKINS Hieny Salt Lake City Office:

75 Certified Public Accountants 41 North Rio Grande; Suite 101
Providine Guidance with Insioht € Inteority Salt Lake City, UT 84101

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Tremonton, Utah

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Tremonton, Utah (the City), as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January
10, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

QM Phinbino LLC

JONES SIMKINS LLC
Logan, Utah
January 10, 2024

-90-



Logan Office:
1011 West 400 North, Suite 100
Logan, UT 84323-0747

0 JONES SIMKINS Salt Lake City Office:

75 Certified Public Accountants 41 North Rio Grande; Suite 101
Providine Guidance with Insioht € Inteority Salt Lake City, UT 84101

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
AS REQUIRED BY THE STATE COMPLIANCE AUDIT GUIDE

To the Mayor and City Council
City of Tremonton, Utah

Report on Compliance
Opinion on Compliance

We have audited City of Tremonton Utah’s (the City) compliance with the following applicable
state requirements described in the State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the
State Auditor, for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Budgetary Compliance

Fund Balance

Justice Court

Restricted Taxes and Related Revenues
Fraud Risk Assessment

Government Fees

Cash Management

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the state compliance
requirements referred to above for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Compliance

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the
State Compliance Audit Guide, issued by the Office of the Utah State Auditor. Our
responsibilities under those standards and the State Compliance Audit Guide are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.
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Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the state requirements referred to above.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on the City’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the State
Compliance Audit Guide will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of
not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above
is considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it
would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the
City’s compliance with the requirements of the State Compliance Audit Guide as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the State
Compliance Audit Guide, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the City’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the City’s internal control over compliance relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to
test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State
Compliance Audit Guide, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.
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Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are required
to be reported in accordance with the State Compliance Audit Guide and which are described
below. Our opinion on compliance is not modified with respect to these matters.

e Cash Management — We noted all Deposit and Investment Reports (D&I) that were
submitted to the Money Management Council were not filed timely. Additionally, we
noted one instance in which the City submitted the D&I report with inaccurate balances.

o View of Responsible Olfficials — The City has informed us that they understand the errors
and will emphasis focus on ensuring that the Deposit and Investment Reports are
submitted timely and accurately with the Money Management Council.

The City’s response to the noncompliance finding identified in our audit is described above. The
City’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance
and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a state compliance
requirement on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is
a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a state compliance requirement will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a state compliance requirement that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

-03-



The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the State Compliance Audit Guide. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for
any other purpose.

QMM LLC

JONES SIMKINS LLC
Logan, Utah
January 10, 2024
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ORDINANCE NO. 24-01

AN ORDINANCE OF TREMONTON CITY APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE
TREMONTON CITY LAND USE CODE, INCLUDING TITLE | CHAPTER 1.04 LAND
USE AND APPEAL AUTHORITIES; TITLE Il CHAPTERS 2.02 CONCEPT PLANS;
2.03 PRELIMINARY PLATS; 2.04 FINAL PLATS; AND 2.07 LOT SPLITS

WHEREAS, the Tremonton City Council has the authority under Title 10 Chapter 9a Utah
Municipal Code to adopt land use ordinances; and

WHEREAS, the Tremonton City Council has adopted the Tremonton City Land Use
Code, which includes regulations and requirements for subdividing land within Tremonton City;
and

WHEREAS, in the 2023 Utah Legislative Session, the legislators adopted Senate Bill 174,
creating a new process that all municipalities and counties must follow for subdividing residential
lots; and

WHEREAS, municipalities of the first, second, third, and fourth class are required to
amend their subdivision process and procedures to comply with Senate Bill 174 by February 1,
2024; and

WHEREAS, Tremoton City is a municipality of the fourth class and needs to comply with
Senate Bill 174 by February 1, 2024; and

WHEREAS, City staff has prepared amendments to the Land Use Code for the Planning
Commission’s review and recommendation; and

WHEREAS, consistent with the noticing requirements, the Tremonton City Planning
Commission caused a public hearing notice to be published, giving notice of the proposed
amendments to the Land Use Code; and

WHEREAS, the Tremonton City Planning Commission held a public hearing on January
9, 2024, to listen to public comment regarding the proposed amendments to the Tremonton City
Land Use Code; and

WHEREAS, after holding a public hearing, the Planning Commission recommends that
the City Council approve amendments to the following Chapters within the City Land Use Code,
including Title I Chapter 1.04 Land Use and Appeal Authorities; Title 11 Chapters 2.02 Concept
Plans; 2.03 Preliminary Plats; 2.04 Final Plats; and Chapter 2.07 Lot Splits to bring Tremonton
City’s subdivision ordinances in compliance with Senate Bill 174.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED that the Tremonton City Council of

Tremonton, Utah hereby adopts, passes, and publishes Ordinance No. 24-01 amending the
Tremonton City Land Use Code, including Title | Chapter 1.04 Land Use and Appeal Authorities;
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Title I Chapters 2.02 Concept Plans; 2.03 Preliminary Plats; 2.04 Final Plats; and Chapter 2.07
Lot Splits as contained in Exhibit “A.”

Should any portion of this Ordinance be deemed invalid or unenforceable by the rule of
law or otherwise, all other aspects of this Ordinance shall remain enforceable and in full effect.

This Ordinance is hereby adopted this 16" day of January 2024 and shall be effective upon
its adoption.

TREMONTON CITY CORPORATION

By
Lyle Holmgren, Mayor

ATTEST:

Linsey Nessen, City Recorder
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EXHIBIT “A”
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CHAPTER 1.04
LAND USE AND APPEAL AUTHORITIES

Sections:

1.04.005 Zoning Administrator — Authority and Duties.
1.04.010 Planning Commission, Number of Members.
1.04.015 Planning Commission Appointment.

1.04.020 Term of Office.

1.04.025 Removal of Planning Commissioners.
1.04.030 Chairperson.

1.04.035 Roll of Planning Commission.

1.04.040 Planning Commission’s Powers and Duties.
1.04.045 Voting.

1.04.050 Training.

1.04.055 Compensation.

1.04.060 Traffic Advisory Board.

1.04.065 Development Review Committee, Number of Members, Appointment.
1.04.070 Term of Office.

1.04.075 Voting.

1.04.080 Chairperson.

1.04.085 DRC'S Purpose and Duties.

1.04.090 Rules of Procedure and Order.

1.04.095 Appeal Authority.

1.04.100 Submission of Appeal Application.

1.04.105 Form and Contents of Appeals and Required Documents.
1.04.110 Public Notice.

1.04.115 Appeal Review and Approval Procedure.
1.04.120 Appeal Approval Standard.

1.04.005 ZONING ADMINISTRATOR - AUTHORITY AND DUTIES. The Zoning Administrator or designee
is hereby granted the following authority and duties, including but not limited to the following:

A. Enforce Titles I, I, and 111 and all provisions thereof and shall do so by any legal means.
B. Advise the Building Official on the issuance of Building Permits relating to requirements in Titles I, I1, and I1I.

C. Inspects the uses of buildings, structures or land to determine compliance with these Titles or any Conditions
issued with a development permit. Such inspections shall be made at reasonable times.

D. Issue Notices of Violation wherever building, land, or development permits are being used contrary to the
provisions of Titles I, I, and Ill. (This shall be done by serving notice in writing on any person engaged in said
violation and posting such notice on the premises.)

E. Inform the City Council of significant Title violations and recommend specific courses of action with regard to
each violation.

F. Maintain a file of Title violations and action to be taken by the City Council on such violations.

G. Interpret codes and maps if another body is not identified. The Zoning Administrator is authorized to forward
issues to the Planning Commission for Interpretation.

H. Serves as the staff to the Planning Commission and is authorized to set the Planning Commissions agenda and
to set dates for public hearings on the Planning Commission’s agenda.

I. Other duties specifically assigned in these Titles.
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1.04.010 PLANNING COMMISSION, NUMBER OF MEMBERS. There is hereby created a Planning
Commission for Tremonton City, Utah. The Planning Commission shall consist of five (5) Members; each
appointment consented to by the City Council. Members of said Commission may reside outside of Tremonton City.
The City Council may assign a City Council member as an ex-officio and non-voting Member of the Planning
Commission.

1.04.015 PLANNING COMMISSION APPOINTMENT. When vacancies occur in the Planning Commission, a
City Council member that is an ex-officio member of the Planning Commission shall appoint an individual to serve
on the Planning Commission with the advice and consent of the City Council. In cases when a City Council member
has not been assigned to be an ex-officio Member of the Planning Commission, the Mayor shall appoint an individual
to serve on the Planning Commission with the advice and consent of the City Council. It is the responsibility of the
City Council member or Mayor that is appointing, with the advice and consent of the City Council, to make a careful
and critical evaluation of the individual ability to fulfill the role of a Planning Commissioner. To aid in the evaluation
process, the City Council or Mayor may interview or request a letter of interest, resume, written statement growth-
related issues, etc., from the prospective Planning Commissioner.

1.04.020 TERM OF OFFICE. The terms of the appointed Members of the Planning Commission shall be three (3)
years, and until their respective successors shall have been appointed, except that the terms of appointment shall be
such that the terms of two (2) Members shall expire each year. The City Council member assigned to be the ex-officio
member shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council. The Planning Commission existing at the time of passage of
this Title shall continue to serve, and the terms of its Members shall be fixed by the City Council in such a manner as
to comply with the above provisions for staggering terms of service. Vacancies of appointed Members occurring other
than through the expiration of a term shall be filled for the remainder of the unexpired term by appointment of the
City Council.

1.04.025 REMOVAL OF PLANNING COMMISSIONERS. Planning Commissioners are political appointees of
the City Council and serve at the pleasure of the City Council. As political appointees, the City Council shall have
the right to remove any Member of the Planning Commission for any reason or no reason at all. A Planning
Commissioner shall be removed from their public office by a majority vote of the City Council.

1.04.030 CHAIRPERSON. The Planning Commission shall elect a Chairperson from its Members, whose term shall
be for one (1) year, and shall preside and conduct the Planning Commission meetings. The Chairperson shall pace the
meeting so that all items on the agenda should be addressed and either concluded or continued. The Chairperson shall
ensure that the time limits on the public comment portion of the meeting are complied with. The Chairperson shall
use their best efforts to see that Members and the public are treated at all times with respect and that the meetings are
orderly.

1.04.035 ROLE OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION. Planning Commissioners are public officials that are
political appointees of the City Council. As non-elected public officials, Planning Commissioners do not have a
constituency, nor do they represent the citizens or a neighborhood. The Planning Commission’s primary purpose is
to be an advisory body to the City Council by providing reasoned recommendations to the City Council on land use
matters.

1.04.040 PLANNING COMMISSION’S POWERS AND DUTIES. The Planning Commission is hereby granted
the following powers and duties:

A. Make a recommendation to the City Council on a General Plan and amendments to the General Plan;

B. Make a recommendation to the City Council on land use Ordinances, zoning maps, official maps, and
amendments;

C. Make a recommendation on the appropriate delegation of power to a Land Use Authority to hear and act on a
land use application;

D. Make recommendations on appropriate delegation of power to an Appeal Authority to hear and act on an appeal
from a decision of a Land Use Authority;
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E. Make recommendations on application processes that may include a designation of routine land use matters that,
upon application and proper notice, shall receive informal streamlined review and action if the application is
uncontested (see UCA 10-9a-302 (5)); and

F. Act as the Land Use Authority as prescribed in Title I and Title I1.
G. Act as the Appeal Authority as prescribed in Title | and Title II.

1.04.045 VOTING. Three (3) voting Members of the Planning Commission shall constitute a Quorum. The minimum
number of "yes” votes to approve any application, approve any recommendation, or to take any other action by the
Planning Commission shall be the majority of the Quorum present at a meeting. The Chairperson of the Planning
Commission shall be a voting Member.

1.04.050 TRAINING. In accordance with Utah Code 10-9a-302, each Planning Commissioner shall complete four
hours of annual land-use training. One hour of the annual training shall be on general powers and duties under Title
10, Chapter 9a, Municipal Land Use, Development, and Management Act. Three hours of annual training on land use,
which may include: appeals and variances; conditional use permits; exactions; impact fees; vested rights; subdivision
regulations and improvement guarantees; land use referenda; property rights; real estate procedures and financing;
zoning, including use-based and form-based; and drafting ordinances and code that complies with state statute.

1.04.055 COMPENSATION. The Members of the Planning Commission shall serve without compensation, except
that the City shall reimburse the Members of the Planning Commission for actual expenses incurred, upon presentation
of proper receipts and vouchers, and with prior approval of the Zoning Administrator.

1.04.060 TRAFFIC ADVISORY BOARD. Reserved.

1.04.065 DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE, NUMBER OF MEMBERS, APPOINTMENT. There is
hereby created a Development Review Committee for Tremonton City, Utah, hereafter referred to as DRC. The
Development Review Committee shall consist of five (5) Members. The City Council hereby appoints as regular
Members of the DRC the individuals holding the following positions: City Manager, Zoning Administrator, Public
Works Director, Parks and Recreation Director, and City Engineer. The alternate Members of the DRC shall be the:
City Attorney and Building Official. The Chairperson may decide when to use an alternate member of the DRC in
the place of a regular Member.

1.04.070 TERM OF OFFICE. The term of office of the Development Review Committee Member shall be
concurrent with the term of their employment with Tremonton City.

1.04.075 VOTING. Three (3) voting Members of the DRC shall constitute a Quorum. The minimum number of "yes"
votes to approve any application, approve any recommendation, or to take any other action by the DRC shall be three
(3). The Chairperson of the Development Review Committee shall be a voting Member.

1.04.080 CHAIRPERSON. The Zoning Administrator shall serve as the Chairperson and shall preside and conduct
at the DRC meetings. The City Manager shall be the Chairperson in the absences of the Zoning Administrator.
Chairperson shall chair the meeting in a manner to accomplish the following goals. The Chairperson, shall pace the
meeting so that all items on the agenda should be addressed and either concluded or continued. The Chairperson shall
ensure that the time limits on the public comment portion of the meeting are complied with. The Chairperson shall
use their best efforts to see that Members and the public are treated at all times with respect and that the meetings are
orderly.

1.04.085 DRC’S POWERS AND DUTIES. The DRC is hereby granted the following powers and duties:
A. Act upon Land Use and Development as prescribed in Title | and Title 1.

B. Act as the Appeal Authority as prescribed in Title I and Title 11.
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1.04.090 RULES OF PROCEDURE AND ORDER. Pursuant to Utah Code 10-3-606, the following rules of order
and procedure shall be used to govern the meetings of the Planning Commission, Development Review Committee,
and Appeal Authorities.

A. Meeting Procedures. All Planning Commission, DRC, and Appeal Authority meetings shall be conducted in
accordance with Roberts Rules of Order. If any rule contained in Roberts Rules of Order conflicts with any provision
of these rules in this Section or Utah State law governing meeting procedures for the Planning Commission, DRC, or
Appeal Authorities, the Planning Commission, DRC, and Appeal Authority shall follow the provision of these rules
in this Section or State Law.

B. Public Comment. There shall be on every agenda of the Planning Commission, DRC, and Appeal Authority an
item entitled "public comment." The public comment portion of the meeting shall be limited to the public speaking to
the Planning Commission, DRC, or Appeal Authority on any item not on the agenda or at the discretion of the
Chairperson an item on the agenda. Members of the public shall be free to express any idea, question, or view point
without limitation except for time and the manner of the presentation. Individual members of the public shall be limited
to three (3) minutes time. The Chairperson of the meeting shall ensure that the public comment is civil and orderly.
The Chairperson shall use its best efforts to allow the free expression of the public and keep the meeting in order.
Members should not interrupt, argue with, or otherwise interfere with any comment by a member of the public. The
Planning Commission, DRC, or Appeal Authority may ask clarifying questions of the member of the public making
a presentation and other members of the public may ask clarifying questions of the presenter at the discretion of the
Chairperson.

C. Public Participation in Meeting. Other than, at a required public hearing and the public comment portion of the
meeting, members of the public shall not be allowed to participate in the meeting unless they are on the agenda.

D. Member Participation. At regular meetings of the Planning Commission, DRC, and Appeal Authority Members
shall speak only after being recognized by the Chairperson. Any meeting designated as a work meeting shall be more
informal and Members may freely participate as long as proper decorum is maintained. Members shall conduct
themselves at all times with decorum and respect. They shall refrain from making any disparaging remarks concerning
any other member of the body or the public. Any Member wishing to speak on any item on the agenda shall be
recognized by the Chairperson to do so.

E. Disclosure. An opportunity to see, hear, and know all facts and evidence that are considered by the Planning
Commission, DRC, and Appeal Authority in making a decision shall be known. Any private or ex parte
communication to individual Members of the Planning Commission, DRC, or Appeal Authority shall be made known
at the meeting for the record.

F. Conflicts of Interest. Member of the Planning Commission, DRC, or Appeal Authority shall adhere to UCA 10-
3-1301 et.al. and disclose conflicts of interest pertaining to items that are on the Commission and Board’s agenda.
Conflicts of interests generally include a direct or indirect financial interest in the decision, or a close familial
relationship with an Applicant, and other circumstances that could create a potential bias by the Member. Generally,
state law requires Members to disclose the conflict and it is recommended that the Member recuse themself from
participation in the discussion and decision. Members of the Planning Commission, DRC, and Appeal Authorities are
encouraged to discuss potential conflict of interest with the City Attorney to ensure compliance with state law.

G. Findings of Fact. An Administrative Decision made by the Planning Commission or DRC shall include the
explicit and careful findings of fact which are enumerated for the record so that all interested persons know exactly
what has been decided and the basis for the decision. Enumerating specific Ordinances or criteria within approving,
approving with conditions, or denying an application are an essential aspect of due process and may be the basis for
which an appeal of a decision is made. Records of all findings shall be kept and maintained.

H. Meeting Adjournment. Meetings of the Planning Commission and DRC, as a goal, shall be scheduled to end at
or before 8:30 p.m. for the Planning Commission and 12:00 noon for the DRC and the Chairperson and Members shall
use their best efforts to conclude the meeting in a timely manner. However, no motion to extend the time of the meeting
is necessary to be made. The meetings of the Planning Commission and DRC shall not be adjourned until either all
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items listed on the agenda have been acted upon or a motion to adjourn is made and approved by a majority of the
Members.

1.04.095 APPEAL AUTHORITY. The City Council, Planning Commission, DRC, Zoning Administrator,
Engineering Appeal Panel, and other public bodies or individuals as specifically prescribed in Title I and Title Il are
hereby designated to serve as Appeal Authorities and to decide upon appeals of a decision of a Land Use Authority.
The Appeal Authority for an appeal associated with_the Engineering Appeal Panel shall be in accordance with UCA
10-9a-508(5) and Geologic Hazards shall be in accordance with UCA 10-9a-703 (2).

A. Condition Precedent to Judicial Review. No person, board, or officer of a Land Use Authority may seek judicial
review of any decision applying the Land Use Ordinance until after challenging the Land Use Authority’s decision in
accordance with Title I or Title 11. No theory of relief may be raised in the District Court unless it was timely and
specifically presented to the Appeal Authority. In accordance with UCA 10-9a-701(4) adversely affected party shall
not be required to pursue duplicate or successive appeals before the same or separate Appeal Authorities as a condition
of an appealing party’s duty to exhaust administrative remedies before appealing to district court.

B. Appeal Authority Procedures. The number of Members, Chairperson, appointments, term of office, quorum and
voting requirements of the City Council, Planning Commission, DRC, Zoning Administrator and other public bodies
or individuals acting as a Appeal Authorities, shall be the same as prescribe in Title I or Title Il, or if not contained in
Title 1 or Title 11 than as contained by City Ordinance or in State law. If there is no specific quorum and voting
requirement listed for a body in Title | or Title 11, City Ordinance, or State law than the quorum or voting requirement
shall be the majority members of the body shall be present to constitute a quorum; the minimum number of "yes" votes
to approve any appeal shall be the majority of the quorum present at the meeting. Appeal authority procedures not
specifically prescribed in Title | or Title Il shall be in accordance with UCA 10-9a Part 7.

1.04.100 SUBMISSION OF APPEAL APPLICATION. Anapplicant, person, board or officer of the City adversely
affected by the Land Use Authority’s decision applying a Land Use Ordinance may, within the time period provided
in Title I and Title 11 (see individual processing Chapter for time periods), appeal that decision to the Appeal Authority
by alleging there is error in any order, requirement decision, or determination made by the Land Use Authority in the
decision applying the Land Use Ordinance. Appeal Application shall generally be submitted to the Zoning
Administrator unless otherwise noted in Title I, I1, or State law. No Appeal Application may be processed without the
submission of the application, all the supporting materials as required by Section, and the application fee. Incomplete
applications shall not be processed under any circumstance.

1.04.105 FORM AND CONTENTS OF APPEALS AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTS. The Appeal Application
shall be submitted with the materials listed in this Section. The Zoning Administrator or Appeal Authority may
determine and require that additional items not listed herein be submitted in order to evaluate the proposed Appeal
Application. The number of hard copies shall be determined by the Zoning Administrator.

A. Written Statement Setting Forth Theories of Relief Required. The appellant shall submit a written statement
setting forth each theory of relief they intend to raise at the hearing, along with a brief statement of facts in support
thereof.

B. Public Notice. Addressed and stamped envelopes (the City’s address shall be the return addresses on the
envelopes) of property owners located within three-hundred (300) feet of the proposed Appeal.

C. Fee. The processing fee required by the current Fee Schedule as set by resolution of the City Council shall be
paid.

1.04.110 PUBLIC NOTICE. The Zoning Administrator shall cause all property owners within three-hundred (300)
feet of the boundaries of the parcel of property which is subject to the Appeal to be notified by first class mail of the
date, place and time of the public hearing and other relevant information associated with the hearing at least ten (10)
days prior to the hearing. A notice of the date, place and time of the public hearing and other relevant information
associated with the hearing shall also be posted in three (3) public places within the City, or posted on the City website
and the Utah Public Notice website at least ten (10) days prior to the hearing. Twenty-four (24) hour notice of a public
meeting shall be posted in three (3) public places within the City or posted on the City website and the Utah Public
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Notice website. Pursuant to UCA 10-9a-206 (1) (b) the City shall post notice on the property with a sign of sufficient
size, durability, print quality, and location that is reasonably calculated to give notice to passer-by.

1.04.115 APPEAL REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCEDURE.

A. Upon receipt of a complete application, the Zoning Administrator shall schedule the application for a public
hearing and review before the Appeal Authority. Prior to the hearing at which the Appeal Application is scheduled to
be heard, the Zoning Administrator shall transmit the application materials together with a written analysis of the
Appeal application, pertinent facts, a review of applicable regulations and a formal staff recommendation to the Appeal
Authority.

B. The Appeal Authority shall hold a public hearing on the Appeal and thereafter consider the Appeal, together with
all pertinent facts, applicable regulations and the staff recommendation and shall take action to approve, disapprove
or request further information prior to rendering a final determination on the Appeal application.

1.04.120 APPEAL STANDARD.

A. Standard of Review and Burden of Proof on Appeal. The Appeal Authority shall, on appeal, presume that the
decision applying the Land Use Ordinance is valid and determine only whether the decision is arbitrary, capricious,
or illegal. The burden of proof on appeal is on the Appellant.

B. Findings of Facts. The Appeal Authority shall not approve, an Appeal application unless it makes findings of
facts that enumerates the Land Use Authorities decision on applying the Land Use Ordinance was arbitrary, capricious,
or ill